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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The Committee of Management, also refered to in this report as the Board of Trustees, present their report with the financial
statements of the Society for the year ended 31 December 2019,

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

GLL is an Exempt Charily and a Registered Society under the Cc-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, The Society
operates for the benefit of the wider communities we serve and does not distribute profit. Any surphus is appiied solely to a general
reserve for the conlinuation and development of the Society.

GLL was established in 1933 with a portiotio of seven leisure centres in one Partnership. In 2019, the GLL Group directly managed
over 400 faclities including leisure centres, play centres, children centres and libraries in parinership with over 80 local councils and

other organisations.

Al charitable trading activities are undertaken direcfly by GLL with non-charitable activilies operated through its wholly owned
subsidiary GLL (Trading) Limiled. Any surplus made by GLL (Trading) Limited is gift aided back to GLL. This structure is in place to
ensure transparency and meet the guidance pubiished by the Charity Commission,

Some services in the Newcastle contract are delivered to GLL by its other wholly owned subsidiary, North Country Leisure. This
includes the provision of staffing. These services are recharged in fuil and at cast to GLL.

The income turnover of the GLL Group in 2019 was £303m.

GLL is widely acknowledged to be the UK's leading and fargest charitable social enterprise delivering leisure, health, cultural and
commuity services.

We are different from most businesses in our chosen sectors, Different in how we govern, different in our sociat values and different
in aur commitment to make the world a better place to live in. We are proud of these differences. They runs through alt parts of our
core business from planning, operation through to our investments.

GLL is governed by a Board of Trustees appointed by the annual general meeting. Our governing document is our ruies, first registered
in 1983, and revised and re-registerad with the Financial Conduct Autharity on the 17th February 2010.

The GLL Board of Trustees has representation from a number of stakeholders including Local Authority members, independent skilled
professionals and significantly, the workforca, This stakeholder mix has helped create empowerment, enthusiasm and ownership at

all levels of the organisation.

In the governing document (our rules), the Board of Trustees is referred to as the "Committee of Management”.

 Main -
- . Board of Trustees™ -

Bemuneration
... Sub Committee -
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPQRT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20119

'STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

The governance structure regorting to the Board includes the:

« Execufive Sub Commiitee for investment and urgent contractual or poiicy decisions (The Executive Sub Comimiltee
consisting of the Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, Chief Executive and Secretary has full delegated authorily from the Board).

»  Audlt Sub Committee responsible for managing GLL's risk regisier as well as signing off the Financial Statements annually
on behaff of the Beard.

e Remuneration Sub Commiltee responsible for the empioyment and terms and conditions of the executive directors and the
general pay and remuneration terms of all employees (Mo member of staff can sit on this subcommittee, it is constifuted

wholly by Independent Trustees).

The Board of Trustees reviews and sels the Strateqy and Chjectives annuatly in the context of a five year corporate plan, It meets
quarterly to review progress and consider additional strategy and policy decisions.

GLL operates a risk register to record any potential risk the society may face. The risk register is a working document that is Updated
on an angoing basis with mitigating strategies as necessary. The register is reviewed by the Audit Sub Committee every quarter,

Day to day management and delivery of GLL’s annual corporate plan is delegated to the Chief Officer Group. The Chief Executive
Officer reports to the Board of Trustees and is a fuil ex officio member of the Board. At the time of executing this statement, the Chief
Officer Group comprised of Mark Sesnan (CEQ), Peter Bundey (Deputy CEO), Philip Donnay (Chief Finance & Resaurces Officer)
and Andy Bindon {Chief Officer for Change and Values).

Recruitment and appointment of new Board Members
in exercising its powers o nominate, appoint, reappeint, elect, re-elect, approve and dismiss Members, the Society Members seek to
ensure that the Board is representative of the local communily and aiso comprises persons with a broad range of skills who are likefy

to contribute to the Sociely's success.

Induction and training of new Board Members
Board Members foflow an induction and famiiarisation programme as required, and altend development sessions fo discuss

improvement proposals, which also feature externally facilitated sessions as nacessary.

$taff Empowerment
Al gligible staff in GLL are encouraged to join the Sociely as voting members, This leads to a high level of commitment, empowerment

and mativation resulting in an improved Guality of service to the community.

We are more than just a leisure & cultural management company, we are a staff-owned social enterprise that exists to provide
both community benefit and improved lives.

GLL was founded upon core principles of sccial value and co-ownership — where our staff colleagues, business partners and
stakeholders work together to produce a better way of providing services and doing business.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
The Remuneration Sub Committee (RSC) made up entirely of Independent Trustees is responsibility for determining the pay of key

management personnel and for seffing the annual pay awards for all employees and workers,

In summary:
- the Remuneration Sub Cormmiltee takes responsibility (i) for determining both the policy and structure for the chief
officers’ pay and benefits patkage, and their pay awards, and {ii) for approving the chief officers’ recommendations

on the pay awards for other employees and workers;
- the Chief Officer Group is responsible for the pay and benefits packages of all ather employees and workers, and for
making recommendations to the Remuneration Sub Commitiee on the annual pay award for all employees and

workers other than themseives,

The full Board of Trustees remains responsible for the appointment and termination of the CEC aithough any termination payment is
to be determined by the Remuneration Sub Committee.

In conducting its role, the RSC perlodically reviews the remuneration of Chief Officers in line with the development of the Soclety. Past
reviews have included the commissioning of independent surveys to ensure appropriate benchmarking of pay awards. The last review
was conducted in 2013,
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OFf MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

The objects of the society as published in our rules are:
(a} ta provide or assist in the provision of facilities and services for the public benefit for recreationat, sparting or other

leisure time occupation in the interests of social welfare, healthy fiving and educatian, such faciliies being provided
to the public at large save that special facilities may be provided for persons who by reason of their youth, age,
infirmity or disability, poverty or social or economic circumstances may have need of speciai facilities and services,

and for
(b) to promote community participation in healthy living, andfor
(c) to advance the education of the public in the benefits of heaithy lifestyles, and /or
(d) {0 advance the arts, culture and / or heritage, and / ar
(e) to provide support services relating to the above, and / or
)] to provide constiltancy and advise to public, sparting and charitable organisations, and / or
[(s)] such other charitable purposes beneficial to the community consistent with the objects above as the Trustees shall in

their absolute discretion determine.
Since our formation in 1993, GLL has been proud of both our success and our difference in the leisure & cuitural sector.

We are proud that we have always sought to define ourselves by being a leading soctal enterprise that is staff-owned,
charitable and has community benefit at the heart of our mission. We want to be seen as different with our customers,
partners and suppliers too and to celebrate our unigue approach to partnership and customer experience,

These are challenging times for our sector with continued economic uncertainty, less public funding for feisure, sport & culture and
increased competition leading to increased pressure on consumer spend and our existing service delivery models.

Our confidence in our expertise and differentiation in the marketplace will be key as we continue to build long term partnerships and
reengineer our service delivery to become more productive, more efficient and more successful.

As a staff-owned company, employees have always been at the core of our democracy, governance and productivity. We strive to be
recognised as the most dynamic staif owned business in the UK and this big ambition needs suitably big commitment from all staff to

learn, deliver and improve our services, business succass and social impact.

In 2019, GLL worked in direct Parinership with the following Ccuncils and organisations delivering scme of their public services
including leisure centres, libraries, play centres and children centres:

Allerdale Borough Council

Bath and North East Somerset Council
Belfast City Council

Bridgend County Berough Council
Cambridge City Council

Cardiff City Council

Carfisle City Coungil

Chiltern District Councll

City of York

Copeland Borough Coungil

Cornwall Council

Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
East Cambridge District Council
Eden District Council

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council
Greater London Assembly

Guildmore Lid

Henley Town Council

Lincoinshire County Coundil

Londen Legacy Developmeni Corperation
London Borough of Barnet

London Berough of Bromley

London Borough of Carnden

® 9§ & ® @ & & & & 9 F B F S & O S P OE U B BB
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

London Boreugh of Croyden

London Borough of Ealing

London Beraugh of Lambeth

London Berough of Hackney

London Borough of Hammersmith & Futham
London Borough of Hilingdon

Lendon Borough of Islington

London Borough of Merion

London Borough of Tower Hamlats
London Borough of Waltham Forest
London Borough of Wandsworth
London Playing Fields Foundation
Manchester City Council

Manchester Metropofitan University
Newcastle City Council

North Kesteven District Council

North Somerset Council

Preston City Council

Prestwood Sport and Leisure Association
Reading Borough Council

Reigate and Bansted Borough Council
Royal Borough of Greenwich

Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea
Rugby Borough Council

South Bucks District Council

South Lakeland District Council

South Oxfordshire District Council
Swindon Boreugh Council

Taunton Deane Barough Council (Partnership ended in Juiy 2019)
Telford and Wrekin Borough Council
University of Manchester

Vale of White Horse District Council
Welwyn and Hatfield Borough Council
West Oxfordshire District Council

..I..!..I.II..I...I.......'I......

This partnership approach with the various councils and arganisations has been a key plank of eur success. Each
relationship is underpinned by a formal contract and each contract is subject to termination dates and possible tendesing
for renewal.

in addition, GLL worked in parfnership with fellow scciat enterptises:

Freedom Leisure Limited in delivering the services of 6 pubiic leisure centres in the South and South East for the
following Councils:

+  Guildford Borough Council
o Woking Borough Council

Halo Leisure Limited in delivering services in 8 leisure centres for Bridgend County Boraugh Council.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE QF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

CORE PURPOSE

GLL's overarching aim is to deliver sustainable and affordable provision of facilities and services for the public benefit for recreationai,
sporling, culttral and other leisure time occupation in the interest of sccial welfare, healthy living and education.

GLL has adopted Four Pillars to frame our vision and mission:

Service Excellence - “BETTER SERVICE”

Strong Business ~> “BETTER BUSINESS"

Motivated, Engaged and Well Trained Staff ~> "BETTER PEQPLE"
Social impact > “BETTER COMMUNITIES”

PN

We seek to drive our business acrass afl four of these objectives using a balanced scerecard to track our progress and ensuring our
Charitable Objectives are continuously met,

Wider Partnerships

GLL works closely with or seeks to have a relationship with many cther pariners in addition to our local authority partners,
these include:
e The London Mayor’s office, Greater London Assembly and the London Legacy Development Corporation
{LLDC)
Community Leisure UK {Formeny Sports and Recreation Trusts Association / Sporta)
The Sectar Skills Council, SkitlsActive and the National Skills Academy
Sport England
Greenwich, Newham and Hackney Community Colleges
Sacial Enterprise Coalition {SE UK)
UK Active {FIA) and CIMPSA
British Swimming / Swim England, Lawn Tennis Association (LTA), British Gymnastics, GB Basketball, British
Basketball League, England Basketball, G8 Handball, England Netball, Badminton Engiand, Volleyball England,
British Fencing, Squash Engtand and other UK Sports Governing Badies
«  Middlesex University and the Londen Sport institute (GLL Sport Foundation}
*  Cooperatives UK

We aim to support locai and central government initiatives that promote the development of services for the benefit of the
wider community particutarly in the areas of sport, heaith, culture and physical activity.

These aims and abjectives are delivered through a range of strategies that are iisted in GLL"s annual and 5 year Corporate
Pians. These plans are managed by the Chisf Officer Group and reviewed by the Board.

STRATEGIC REPORT

ACHIEVEMENTS & PERFORMANCE

2019 was a chaflenging vear across public sector cuitural services with increased ccmpetifion, austerity measure still
impacting Councils and the uncertainty around Brexit. Despite these challenges, we had a number of key achievements
throughout the year, including:

Soclal Focus

s Launch of our ‘| Choose' campaign hightighting cur social erterprise first credenttal

s Biggest year for the GLL Spert Foundation, supporting 3,120 athietes across 117 sports 10 a value of £1.8 mitlion

s  GLL Community Foundation managed 18 successiul projects acress 12 partnerships raising £646,419 for
projects that encourage their local community to be active, leam and play togsther

+  GLL co-authored the Alzheimer's Society Dementia Friendly Sport and Physicat Activity Guide

o Full review of Physical Activity on Referral Scheme initiated across the UK- issuing comprehensive standard
operating procsdures for all partnerships

=  Launched the first of its king Social Value Impact Mcdel for Royal Borough of Greenwich Children’s Centres and

Libraries
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

ACHIEVEMENTS & PERFORMANCE (continued)

2018 Awards

* @ & 8 @

Winners of the ‘Buy Social' award at Sacial Enterprise UK

Winners of the Market Builders- Social Enterprisa Supply Chain award at Secial Enterprise UK

Winners of 3 UK Active awards in 2619: London regicn Centra of the Year, \Wales and Northern ireiand Centre
of the Year and Unsung Hero,

Winners at the Social Enferprise Northern Ireland Awards

The Belfast partnership took home the Silver Award for Team of the Year at the UK Business Awards

Awarded Foundation level for Mayor's Healthy Workplace Award

Healthier Together Hackney awarded CLUK Community Impact through Physical Activity award

Runners up in the London Spart Awards- Community Intervention

New Partnerships

10 year parinership commenced with the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea on 1st April

10 year partnership commenced with London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulharn on 1s1 April

Successful tender for a 5 year partnership with Royal Borough of Greenwich Children’s Centres including the
Health Visitor Service

Successful tender for a new partnership with London Berough of Hillingdon

Successful tender for 2 new partnership with Loadon Borough of Camden

Successful tender for a new partnership with Lee Valley Regional Park Authority, which includes cenires on the
Olympic Park

Successful tender for a new 25 year partnership with Reading Borough Counci

Whalley Range Stadium joined the Manchester partnership in March

3 year extension with City of Cambridge from 2020- 2023

3 year extension with London Borough of Tower Hamlets from 2019- 2022

5 year extension with Allerdale Borough Council from 2018- 2024

1 year parinership with Belfast City Council for the new Leisure Employment Academy

1 year partnership extension awarded to Healthier Together Hackney

New Centres Opened

Herne Hill Lifestyle Cantre {Lambeth)

Better Gym Walthamstow (Waltham Forest)
Newquay Trampoline & Play Park (Cornwall)
Cambridge |ce Arena (Cambridge)

New Barnet Leisure Centre {Bamet)

Barnet Copthail Leisure Centre (Barnet)
Lisnasharragh Leisure Centre (Belfast)
Brook Leisure Centre (Belfast)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The results for the year 2018 (January 1st - December 31st) are set out within these consolidated financial statements,

Overalil the total GLL Income Turncver grew by 1.013% in 2019 compared with 2018 to £303m (2018: £299m).

The net trading surplus from operating activities was £1miliion for the year representing a 0.3% margin. This is slighily ahead of the

business pian for the year as we continued our rearganisaticn programma,

Even before the COVID-18 pandemic experienced in 2020, GLL forecast a continuing challenging environment. In the longer term,
clear strategies exist to continue to re-organise the business to improva the surplus margin over the next & years, 2020 was expected
to generate a surplus margin of around £2m but with the government imposed lockdown, GLL expecls to make a substantiai loss in
the year. The cumrent situation has brought forward a great number of recrganisations and changes in the way we operate, The

tandscape of our business is fikely to lock very differant when we return to the new “normal”

With the support of the local authorifies, we are confident of being able {o ride out these turbulent times and come out strong for the

long term.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FINANCIAL REVIEW [continuad)

Cash flow and liguidity is being maintained at adequate levels with the assistarce from Local Authorities, owr bankers and revised
arrangements with key suppliers.

Even with these extraordinary circumstances, conservative long term forecast suggest that GLL will retumn to surplus levels of 3%
margin within the next 5 to 6 vears.

Over 2019, Cash inflows from trading remain significant and positive. Cash inflow from trading exceeded £14m.
The net funds shown on the balance sheet remain in a positive position despite the continued volatility of the pensicn disciosures.
The pension position is expiained in more details later in the report.

Risk Management

The Trustees recognise risk management as one of thelr key responsibilities, The Trustees have adopted a risk management policy
from which they have identified potential risks, the likelihcad of their aceutrence and the potential costs involved. In addition they have
identified current practices in place ta mitigate the risk and further action that might be necessary to limit that risk. The Board receive
quarterly financial information and sufficient commitments are made to cover known {iabilities.

However, even with such poiicy in place, the impact of the CCVID-18 pandemic in 2020 could net be planned for. Although such event
was not named on our risk register, extraordinary events were., Our reserves policy ensured our cash position remains at sufficient
levels fo sustain fiquidity in the short term.

Going Concern
As explained the COVID-19 pandemic has had, and will continue o have a material impact on the frading position of the Society. As

we move forward a number of uncertainties over the extent of the impact still exist and these are detailed below:

s  Customers behaviour
Will the measures that we and the industry have put in place to mitigate risk give customers the confidence to
resume using the facilities, The pandemic has had a far reaching economic impact on all business sectors
and this in turn may have had an impact ¢n the general public's disposabie income. Customers may have
sought alternative options with regard fitness during the lockdown and may have changed the way in which
they engage with public leisure facilities.

»  Continued presence of COVID-19
The world is learning o five with COVID-18 but there is a concern that an increase in cases over the winter

months may fead to secend nationwide lockdown. In addition government policy has introduced localised lock
downs in areas where cases are considered to be high. Government policy to controf the spread will continue
to have an impact on customers’ abiiity lo access and our ability {o defiver our services.
= Financial Support

We have secured short term support from a number of pariners and are in negotiations with others to secure
further support. In addition we are at an advanced stage in negotiations with the Society's bankers to secure
long term debt financing. The outcome of these negotiations will have an impact on the Socisty’s ability to
continue for the foreseeabie future.

The Committee of Management has taken into account the uncertainty caused by COVID-19 and are satisfied that assuming the
Group is able to secure the necessary support from its bankers and partners, that customers behaviour s in line with Industry
expectations, and there isn't a second spike in COVID-19 which results in ancther enforced lockdown then it will be able to meet all
its obligations as and when they fajl due. Accordingly whilst drawing the reader’s attention o the underlying uncertainties thal COVID-
19 pandemic has caused they consider it appropriate to continue o prepare the financial stalements on a going concern basis,

Reserves Policy and Social funds:

The Board has considered the risks and opportunities and reviewed the level of cash reserves which it deems prudent to maintain.
The funds held were considered adequate for the coming year.

Even theugh GLL has since been hit hard by the imposed lockdown dug to the pandemic, these funds have proved to be sufficient so
far to maintain adequate liquidity.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FINANCIAL REVIEW {continued

Reserves Policy and Sociat funds [continued)

A strategy, adopted by the Board, had existed to increase the Company's cash resetves and asset portfofic over the coming years to
support investment plans and protect the organisation against fulure sks, GLL will continue to evaluate all opportunities as they arise
with an aim to build our asset portfolio over time. Needless to say that the circumstances experienced since the year end have denied
GLL's cash reserves significantly. Plans are afool {o raise external finance to maintain fiquidity and resilience in the short term. Longer
term plans will include the need to "rebuild” GLL's working capital for the future.

Al 31 December 2019, the group had accumulated cash balances and working capital of £24m.,

In normai circumstancss, the Society is in a refatively favourable cash flow position because we receive some of our income in advance
of expenditure. Such benefit will return when frading grows back fo “normal’.

The Committee of Management recognise the need for a level of financial reserves that will:
1. Allow for ptanned investment and other similar purposes;
2. Allow for cyclical maintenance expenditure which the Soclety has an obligaticn to incur under various property

leases; and .
3. Shield the Society from the possibillty of adverse unforeseen circumstances.

These unforeseen circumstances include a number of specific events that have been identified in the Saciety’s Risk Regisier but as
mentioned previously, was not specific to the impact of a pandemic.

The Board considered the level of reserves o be appropiiate for the Society to be able fo deliver services to its beneficiaries. This has
been demonstrated of late.

The reserves of the Group and the Society at the period end were as follows:

The Group held fund balances at 31 Decamber 2013 of £1,135,236 (2018: £5,693,796} comprising £180,797 (2018: £188,700) of
restricted funds and £38,843,989 (2018: £37,896,446) of unrestricted general funds, which are the Sociely’s free reserves, and a
pension reserve deficit of £37,937,000 (2018: £28,434,00C). As explained elsewhere in the financial statements it should be noted
however that this deficit will not crystallise within the foreseeabls future and that the Society follows the advice of the pension schemes
actuaries and makes contributions in accordance with the rates advised.

Social Bond Issue

As reported in the previous year's account, GLL with sustainable bank Triodos successfully raised £5 million of capital funds through
a social bond issue in 2013. The bond expired in October 2018 but an cffer to extend thess investments was offered to all bond
haiders. £3,114,700 bond investments were extended and the balance redeemed.

The three year bond extension pays 3% gross fixed interest per year.

As part of the bond issue and to provide comfort to investors, 2 financial covenants were put in place. We are pleased to report against
these below:

Net Asset Covenant
The Bonds incorporates a Net Asset Covenant which Is designed to ensure that the Bond liability is covered at least two limes by the

unrestricted net asset vaiue of the Society. The rationale for the Net Asset Covenant is to provide comfort to Bondholders by ensuring
that GLL retains sufficient ability to liguidate or re-finance its assets to repay the Bonds at any time if nacessary.

As at the 31st December, the bond Rability was covered 13 times by the unrestricted net asset value of the Society (excluding
accounting pension's llabilities under FRS102, see pension note). This exceads the covenant target.

Bond Interest Cover Covenant
The Bonds also include a Bond Interest Cover Covenant which is designed to ensure that the annual Bond interest payable is covered
at least five times by available surpluses.

The surplus declared for 2019 covers the annual kond interest by 10 times and thus exceeds the covenant {arget.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT QF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OECEMBER 2013

SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duties in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 1o have due regard to the
Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

We have referred to the guidance in the Charity Commission general guidance on public benefit when reviewing our aims and
objectives and in planning our fulure activities. In particular, the Trustees consider how planned activities will contribute to the aims

and objectives that they have set.

GLL is the UK's largest |eisure and cultural charitable social enterprise. We operate over 400 facliities with a diverse warkforce of
14,000+, Cur inherent social ethos, inked to our charitable objectives, ensures that accessibility, affordability and equality are at the
heart of our community provision,

In 2018, GLL welcomed in excess of 58 million visits to our facilities across our wide range of activities.

GLL’s Primary Activity

Increasing participation and modernising provision in sport, leisure and cultural activities are identified as the golden threads acress
all of GLL's divisions and servicas. GLL's ambition is for more pecple to engage with its services, mare often. increasing participation
and improving services achieve outcomes which support all of GLL's four core Operating Pillars:

s  Better Communities: Improving access lo service, achieving social impact goals, reducing inequalities, promoting
ampowerment, integration, cohesion, health and wellbeing.

s Better Business: Income generation, achieving client targets, increasing investment in services and facilities,

«  Better People: Creating new opportunities for employment, continuous professional development and job satisfaction.
Encouraging staff to give back i¢ their communities.

s Better Service: Engaging new users, retaining existing users; providing better value and increasing choice through
varied programmes.

Social Objectives
Gl L is & charitable social enterprise. GLL reinvests surpluses to improve the communities we serve, llw lives of the people we smploy
and the facilities we operate. We strive to:
*  increase participation: enable opportunities and activities that promote physical health, mental health, wellbeing,
personal development and inspire communities to be more aclive
+  Improve access to services: reduce inequalities, support diversity, remove barriers to participation, and provide choice for
disadvantaged groups
s lIncrease Social Value: increases the social value generated year on year and the average social value generated per
customer.
e  Generating Surpluses to Reinvest. GLL reinvests its surpluses into:
o Improve faciiities and services
Enabie the sustainable delivery of projects and services that the community need and want
Frovide support and a pathway for young falented athlefes
Upskill local people and provide pathways to training and employment
Provide high quality services and facilities that benefit the focal community,

o 00 ¢

There are many ways in which GLL tangibly reinvests back inte its communities. Here are exampies:
Caoncessionary pricing

Volunlesring programimes

in kind support te individual, clubs and local community groups

Club development

GLL Sport Foundation

Crowdfunding via GLL Community Foundation

Facility improvements

Workforce development

Sateflite community delivery programmes
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT (continued)

Sacial Objectives {continued)
GLL continues to strive to be the best at defivering social impact across all our partnerships. This social defivery is a key ethos of the
erganisation and a reflection of our commitment to lhe comimunities we serve. The foltowing are examples of the initiatives of universai,

targets and specialist services we provide to engage our communities and improve their health and wellbeing,

Community programmes

Diversity & Inclusion Steering Group

Concessionary memberships and discount scheme

Schaois offer

Vulnerable children and Carers support

Heaithwise health referral schemes

60+ Club Games

This Gitl Can programmes

Promofing literacy and national reading events in our fibraries

Social + Community } Economic }

Development

| Physical ’ | Mental 1 ] Individuai \
Development

ij Weilbeing Weilbeing Oevelopment |

Aligned Promotion+

Rartnerships . Engaged. - Sustainability +
Services + Products Cornmunication

+ Networks Clubs + Groups Build Capadty -

GLL APPROACH

Direct, Partnership or Suppoited Delivery Method

s A !
© COMMUNITY IMPACTS
. increased 7 improved: © lncreased ¢ " increased
© _Parfidpation - . Access+ Service - : Social Value - Reirwestment

B | GLL IMPACTS R

l Increased Participation/income- I f Sustalmable Social Enterprise - I [ lmprovedCustomé_rServ'ice. ]

Achieving Better Communities
Through the promation, provision and delivery of guality community services, GLL will empower the local communities in which we

operate to achieve a tetter quality of ife;

improve health and wellbeing by increasing participation

Reduce inequalities and improve access by investing in services and facilities

Nurture achievements and performance pathways through high quality services
*  Promote Jearning and development within our services and in our staff
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT {continued)

Achieving Better Communities (continued)
Demonsirable socia! change is evident in the provision of local jobs; through support to talented athleles; faeilifating access fo

community crowd funding programmes for focal community groups; whilst the drive for increased pariicipation through affordable and
accessible offers has produced £434m in Social Value from more than 38 million visits.

GLE SOCIAL VALUE IMPACT 2019 [REGULAR PARTICIPATION I ACTIVITIES & SPORT]

GLL SOCIAL SALUE BY NeGiDi GLL SOCPAL T2LOE APAET YEAR Bl 163
6LL SAEISL FALUE BY SECTaR , »

IR U NU SN ATR
6000, 204990 B

all Sociat __ fa
Vol

v & 7
£4.50

SCARTN ' ERNETY Oy MR R
E5 3 Tzl Yile

- Aty
Gl ‘.-E]l:lM 'MlUE Piﬂ LL!SII]HEH'
£33

£9 306,108

Use of the DataHub Social Value Calculator helps guide GLL's resource investment and helps us and our clients target inequalities
in provision. Sport & Physical activity are widely recognised as generating social benefits to society and a relationship between sport,
physical activity and four categories of Social Value impact can now be reliably evidenced:

+ Improved health

¢ Reduced crime

* |ncreased educational attainment

+ |mproved life satisfaction or ‘social weilbeing’

Every£1 spentby GLL returns £1.80 of social value against the four dimensions and resulis in a total of £430 of Social Value generated
per participant. As a charilable social enterprise, GLL's Social Value (£434m) is just as important as its annual tumover (£303m) and
it underpins our ethos and values as well as our Corporate Plan objectives.

Focussing on Social Value means valuing accessibility and affordability for custamers — delivering more diverse services, more
concessignhary pricing and mare subsidised activity ;-
e 30% of GLL custeners benefit from concessionary entty {removing a major barrier to participation)
«  Specific demographic aclivities can be prioritised e.g. ‘This Girl Can’ & 'Over 60s programmes’
»  Targeting harder to reach groups stuch as those from BAME communities and those from more sacially deprived areas is
also a priority.
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT [continued}
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The Social Value Calculator helps GLL to evaluate this participation increase and to target inequality in scme of the poorest posicode
areag in partnership with our local authority and public heaith partners. Health inequalities such as CHD, Dementla, Diabetes and
Obesity can be measured quantitatively by activity/demographyigeography and the evidence base informs and enables
performance measurement against goals for targeted interventions ensuring value-for-money investment.

GLL customers were also engaged in realising the difference they can make fo their communities by cheosing GLL as a leisure
provider whose community and charitabie investment is a tangible product of their participation. [n 2019 GLL worked with cver 30
different pariners to increase participation and community engagement,

s Over £200k was directly raised by GLL for Cancer Research UK

« 101 swimming pools raised a further £278k for Cancer Research as part of Swimathan

s £27k of direct GLL reinvestment pledged to 17 projects via the GLL Community Foundation.

GLL Sport Foundation

The GLL Sport Foundation supparted 3,120 athletes creating £1.8 million of reinvestment across 72 parinerships across England,
Northern Ireiand and Waies making it the largest independent athlete support programme in the UK. 92% of supported athietes
receive no other central funding and 68% of supported athletes are aged under 21 proving we are supporling those that nead it
most to achieve their sporting potential.

Qur supported athletes have given back to GLL and their communilies with athletes attending a vaniety of events to inspire locai
people. In 2019, GLL Sport Foundation celebrated 11 years over the course of which it has provided over £11 mitlion of support,
issuing 16,300+ awards to over 8,157 individual athletes across the UK.

GLL Community Foundation

GLL's Community Foundation was created to support and encourage local pecple fo be active, learn and play together. It could be
organising a sporis tournament, improving a community Hibrary or creating a new play area in a local park. The aim is to help
evaryone in our local communities o be able to enjoy educational, sport and play activities. We want ail members of the community

to benefit from projects that improve health and wellbeing.
In 2019 the GLL Community Foundation supported 17 prejects pledging £18,000 in cash and £8,000 in in-kind support.

These projects went onto successfully achieve their fundraising targets, raising a total of £630,600 with pledges from over 1,700
people. For Every £1 GLL invests, projects raise 12x the amount,

The GLL Community Foundation was also a finalist in the Community Leisure UK Awards 2019 in the ‘[nnovation’ cafegory.
Here are two exampies of projects that the GLL Community Foundafion supported in 2019

Tower Hamlets Community Tea Dances

GLL pledged £2 500 in cash support lowards this campaign o hold four tea dances for older residents at Poplar Baths.  This will
be used to provide music, food, dancing lessons and suppeort for transport for the most vilnerable community including those
experiencing Dementia. The in-kind support of £898 was for venue hire use of GLL's Community Sport staff to help run the events

which totalled £800.
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT {continued)

Tower Hamlets Community Tea Dances [continued)

The tea dances are aimed al older peopls, peopie living with dementia and people with various disatilities. The tea dances
themselves are active and many of the dances encourage people fo lake part as a couple or group. This will help reduce loneliness
within the communily. During the events dance lessons will be run for participants fo learn,

These tea dances will feed directly into GLL/ Betler's 50+ Young@Heart programme. Having the tea dances at Poplar Baths will
increase the awareness of the centre and the community prograrmmes on effer. In addition, all material will have Better advertising

and fogo on.

Ravenscourt Park Community Glasshouses

GLL pledged £1,500 in cash support towards this campaltgn to provide a range of gardening and physical acfivities for school pupils,
volunteers, religees, and those with health and learning difficulties at Ravenscourt Park Communily Glasshouses. The building
of a hew glasshouse will act as a community hub for meetings, concerts, and workshops. The importance of green space o improve
health and weilbeing has long been recoghised and ih an inner city borotgh with very high deprivation indices the need for a smaif
piece of calm and nature has never been more needed.

The build will provide opportunities for all the community to learn about heatthy lifestyles and increase physical activily levels and a
green space fo use afl year round.

Beiter cenires in Hammersmith & Futham will benefit from important community iinks to encourage further physical activily
engagement for the participants enhancing targeted demographic usage in the centres.

Employment & Engagement

GLL provides employment for over 14,000 people. in 2015, we achieved the Investors in People Silver award which we retained
again at our latest liP assessment in 2012, lnvestors in People said: "GLL's commitment ta improving the organisation shows that
GLL is progressive and recognises that its ongoing success will be determined by the people that work within it".

Location

We aim to place empicyess in facilities near lo where they live. Many of our facllitics arc In some of the most deprived areas in the
UK. We helieve that giving employment to those who live locally brings greater wealth and sociat cohesion to those locations. Our
local community sport teams have built reiationships with many schoois and colleges throughcut the country, making them aware
of the career and training opportunities avaiiable at GLL and providing work placements,

QOlympic Legacy

Olympic Legacy is a key initiative for GLL and we operate two venues on the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. We are continuously
looking at further initiatives to bring even maore people from the surrounding areas into employment on the Park and the wider East
London region, which has traditionaily bean very deprived. During 2019, there were 433 people working for GLL on the Park, 84 of
whom were new appointments. We issue regular job updates to tocal employment brokers across Londen including Jobcentre Plus,
GLLaB {Royal Borough of Greenwich), the Royal Borough of Kensinglon and Chelsea’s Employability Netwark and the London
Legacy Development Corporation. Our community sport teams are alsg encouraged o build relationships with local scheals,
colleges and universifies for routes into employment with GLL be that via work experience, entry-ievef jobs, the graduaie scheme

or gpprenticeships.

Local and national partnerships

We recognise that different local communities often have specific characteristics and issues, We work closely with agenciesigroups
with local or speciafist knowledge that provide direct access to those we are frying to reach. Underpinning GLL’s entry-ieve!
recruitment strategy s our partnership with Jobcanfre Plus (JCP), the Northern irefand Jobcentre and our partnerships with
employment brokers as mentioned above, All of our entry-level vacancies are advertised across the entire job centre netwark, We

also partaks in local employability schemes as detailed balow.

Socio-demographics

Our social ethos and charitabie objectives ensure accessibility, equality and opporiunity for all - and as such we are an Equal
Qpporiunities Employer with a commitment to bringing employment 1o those who may otherwise be overlooked, feef marginalised
or not $ee a career in leisure, or indeed any carser, as within their grasp, We aim for best practice and accreditation where possibie.
An example of how we aim 10 bring employment to local communities js our partnership with Curo, 2 housing association and house-
builder based in Bath, with whorm we host adult work piacements for 8-10 weeks. In Belfast, we run Leisure Employment Academies
to provide employment opportunities for residents who are unemployed or working 16 hours per week or less: with a massive leistre
transformation project happening, this is a key way cf filling many new roles whilst having a positive impact on the community.
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT {continued)

Socio-demographics (continued)

We also aim to offer long-term career deveiopment and progression by way of career pathways for current employees as well as
our Trainee Management Graduate programime which fast-tracks talented graduates to management positions. For current staff we
offer academies; intensive training schemes incarporating a blended learning approach for aspiring managers and supervisors and
leaders to give them the skifls, knowledge and accredited quaiifications for career advancement and development - this is done
alongside their job role but with time off for study. In 2019, we hosted 66 pecple on our Managers Acadermy and 62 on the Leaders
Academy. 22 were promoted that same year foilowing earller academies. Continuous improvement and development happens at
all levets of our business - in 2019 we {aunched our Sfralegic Leaders Academy which saw 84 of our most senior people undertake

learning to improve their leadership skifis and styles.

There are also many schemes that we participate in with local communities whe struggle to find employment such as the NVQ
programme in Camden where all NVQ students who achieve an Advanced Level 3 Diplorms in Sports Development are guaranteed

an interview,

Included in our wider recruitment remit are specific groups that we reach out to: BME, Women, Older People, Bisability/Leaming
Difficulties, Graduates and NEETSs,

BME

Policy Exchange, the UK's leading think tank, claimed the UK's BME population in 2014 (the most recent official statistic) to be at
14%. The ONS states unemployment amongst the BME community at 13.9% for those aged 16+, GLL has hucked this trend and
hires more people from BME backgrounds than is the ratio for the UK population as a whole. We are continuing to reach out to
BAME groups through specific initiatives within Partnerships with large BME popuiations. In 2019, in London, 33% of GLL's
workforce came from a BME background, with almost 22.5% of our total UK workforce coming from BME backgrounds.

Gender

GLL has been sesking to redress the balance of a male-dominated leisure indusiry by making our snvironment, recruitment
afraction, behaviours and customer aftraction more female-friendly. Sport England's This Girl Can' campaigh has helped make
leisure and sporting environmenis more accessibie and less intimidating places for women and girls, We place more women into
faciliies whers ‘women only' fitness sessions are held for religious or cultural reasons in order to make these sessions mora
accessible to our customer base, In some of these areas, we have funded female-only courses to train women o become fifeguards
andfor swimming teachers. Flexible warking patterns and flexible working hours have been an effecfive and attractive offer for
mothers returning to work and we are continuing to see an increase in the number of females that we hire across the business,
Women make up over 56% of our workforce with over 40% of this figure holding management positions, a 3% increase on 2018 —
this has gone some way to producing cur positive gender pay gap report which saw many of our traditionally female-held roles on
some of our highest hourly pay rates. Our summer lifeguard recruitment campaign was partly targeted at women who are
underrepresented in this field. Our overall lifeguard recruitment in the summer altracted 35% female recruits. We believe that by
attracting more women into entry-levef roles, the gender split at a senior level will become more equal in future years, OQur academies
also aim io give more females the confidence to achieve more in the workpiace — 20 of our Leaders Academy in 2018 were female,
28 of our Managers Academy were female as were 22 on our Senior Leadership Academy.

Older Peopie

We're proud to have a warkforce that spans the generations and believe that keeping physically and mentally active can lead lo a
healthier lifestyle during advancing years as well as providing valuable experience and role model examples to our younger
workforce, Nearly 900 staff were aged 60 or over (an increase of 255 on the previous year) and many were slill in physically aclive
roles such as Lifequard/Recreation Assistant (33 people), Customer Service Advisor {80} and Swimming Teacher (141). Thisis a
positive figure, in line with the UK's ageing population. In Cormwall, we've aiso created volunteering opportuniies as part of the
Walking for Health Scheme which s run by members of the community of almast 60 years oid and over.

Disability/Learning Difficuitias

GLL became a Disability Confident Employer in 2017 having been Two Tick' accredited for many years beforehand — we retained
this accreditation throughout 2019, This accreditation recognises employers who have taken action to meet certain criteria regarding
the employment, retenticn, training and career development of disabled employees. From the availabie data, in 2019, we empioyed

396 people with disabilities ~ 35 more than in 2018.

Disabled peopie are underrepresented in the workforce and iefsure in general. We know that people with disabilities are less likely
to have format qualifications and more likely to be unemployed. GLL has delivered targeted employment programimes alongside
partners who have specialist knowledge and access to disabled peale.
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SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT {confinued)

Disabilityitearning Difficulties (continued)

We wark with National Star College, & leading provider of employment services to the disabled, to not only advise us cf reasonable
adjustments needed for any disabled member of staff, but aiso to offer a work experience programime called Steps into Work for
16-25 year olds. In 2019 we took 6 participants with leaming disabilities through work sxperience placements. They gain (ife skills,
such as improved communication and the ability fo use public transport to get to work. Soft skills that are vital in the workplace such
as reliability, punctuality and a better understanding of social norms and acceptable behaviour at werk are also developed, Following
the programme, ail students are guaranteed an interview with GLL.

There are aisg many local schemes that happened in 2018,

We run Instructability courses in partnership with Aspire across London and the South East. The scheme provides disabled people
with frae accessible fitness industry training and qualifications followed by a voluntary industry work placement. There were 12
participanis who studied for a Level 2 Fitness Instructor qualifications as part of this scheme in the following locations: Croydon,
Waltham Forest, Hertfordshire, Kensington, Crystal Palace and Hackngy.

Our team In Bath and North East Somerset have progressed meetings with the disability charily Lecnard Cheshire to discuss future
wark experience placements as part of their new Change 100 programme for {alented students and gradustes with long-term
disabilities or health conditiens including visual or hearing impairments, mental heaith conditions, dyslexia, dyspraxia and learning
disabilities.

In Camden, we work in parinership with the council's Special Educational Needs and Disahility (SEND) team, leading to two Inferns
working in Pancras Square and Kentish Town leisure cenires for a 10-week period.

Graduates

GLL have supported the employment of graduates for aver 26 years with our graduate Trainee Management (TM} scheme. We've
recruited over 245 peopie via the TM scheme since its inception. It's a fast-track into management and offers two years of experience
in core roles within GLL as well as offering training, qualifications and a salary. In 2019, there were 40 TMs on the schema. We also
open the schame 1o current employees who may not have a degree, but do have some leisure experience and the skills ahd ambition
to get ahead, 28 of 2019's TMs were intenal staff members, Many of our Trainee Managers are now working in senior management
positions, with the rest working in lowar-middle management positions for GLL therefore fulfilling our long-term working relationship

aim.

NEETs
GLL is committed to offering employment opportunities into our entry-level positions 1o those who struggle to find employment due
to a lack of work experience and/or qualifications. As weil as general work experience and atlendance at careers days across the

country, many local initiatives happen.
Our main routes to employment for NEETs are via our apprenticeship scheme:

GLL Apprentice Scheme

GLL deiivers our established apprenticeship programme under the following specialisms: Recreation Assistant, Multi skilled, Tennis,
Fitness Instructor and Customer Service. Towards the end of 2019 we brought in a new apprenticeship scheme called Leisure
Team Member (LTM) which covers Swim Teaching, Recreation Assistant (Lifeguarding) and Filness instruction. The LTM
apprenticeship gives apprentices more varlety and more skillsfqualifications with the aim to snsure employability on cempletion.
Following a training period, apprentices combine over 18 months of study alongside work - for which they are paid a salary, In
2019, GLL recruited 109 new apprentices alongside the 184 already on the schems, 64% of afl apprentices who compieted the
scheme in 2019 went on to wark with GLL on a casual or permanent basis. We have also launched a new LTM Levei 3

appranticeship to upskill current members of staff.

Current Employees

We take our commitment to current employees very seriously and their weil-being, training and development remain an area of
focus for the business, In 2019, 1,082 staff gained new qualifications, 1,087 staff renewed existing qualifications and nearly 3,664
staff completed various forms of in-house training and development (excluding Academies see below). There were also 6,452 onine
modules being completed by staff on our e-learning system, over 4,600 more than last year. Our internal training academies are a
popuiar route for our people to upskil and 2019 aiso saw 25 members of existing staff undertake the Managers Academy, 42
undertake the Leaders Academy, 44 the Sirategic Leaders Academy, and 50 the Strategic Leaders Academy,

Fage 16



GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUBING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

SOCIAL IMPACT & PUBLIC BENEFIT {continued]

Current Empioyees (continued)
Sociat and team bonding events are a key fixture of the GLL year and have a direcl impact on employees building strong working
refationships. In 2018, nearly 3,800 workers attended our UK-wide annual staff communications days and 1,500+ staff got invoived

with & wide range of exira-curricular socigl events held at national, regtonal and local levels.

GLL's “Green Agendy”

GEL takes ifs responsibility about the environment very sericusly. To this aim, each year we strive to reduce energy consumption
and our impact on the envircnment through investment into proven and new technologies and the adaption of best practices,

As a leading sociad enterprise, GLL have an active role in the challenge against climate change and we know how important it is to
work with our partners to manage our impact on the enviranment and support and engage with the move towards a Zera Carbon

Future.

Energy and water are vital for the delivery of our services and represent a significant propertion of our operating costs. Climate
change, potential water shortages and rapidly rising energy costs make it even more important for us to increase our sustainability
through controlling resource consumption and reducing waste.

In 2019, GLL continued our work on key environmental objectives through the delivery of our Strategic Action Plan as well as the
corporate plan, The key principles of reducing carbon emissions and energy use remain core agenda itemns. Other acfions completed
in 2019 included:

»  Successfully certified 11 GLL pramises over 3 parinerships t¢ the updated Environmentai Standard 15014001:2015
including the addition of St Austell Leisure Centre in Cornwall,

=  Delivery of numerous energy capitai investments across the business.

¢ GLL now generates renewable energy from 51 scurces, Including 40 Solar PV installations, 6 Solar Thermal arrays, 4
Biomass boilers and an Air Source Heat Pump.,

» Renewable electricity generation in 2019 totalled over 1.27m kWh. With 847 000kWh of renewable heat.

¢ 48 Combined Heat & Powsr units were active in 2019, using natural gas to generate low Carbon heat and over 17m kWh
of electricity and over 28m kWh of heat locally for premises.

*  Electricity generation from Low Carbon and Renewable sources has helped reduce GLL's Carbon Featprint and lowers the
amount of electricity and gas consumed via the National Grid.

= Implementation of a new waler retail confract covering all GLL premises has been completed in 2019 which has increased
efficiencies In administration and also included automatic meter logging for the largest premises in each of GLL's regions.
Further roll out of meter loggers will be reviewed in 2020,

Environmental Legislation Compiiance in 2019
e  CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme - Annuai report compieted in line with statutory requirements.
¢ Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) submission completed to the Environment Ageney and GLL fully compiied
with the legislation.
* Streamline Energy & Carbon Reporting {SECR) Regulations came into force in April 2019 to replace CRC, GLL has
completed a draft report and put in place robust methodology and procedures e comply as required.
+ Display Energy Certificates have been produced and displayed at all applicable GLL premises.

Waste and Recycling
Grundon Waste Services and their regional partners along with 1st Waste collected general waste and recycling from 187 GLL
Leisure Centres, Bedter Gyms and Libraries under centrally controlled contracts. The key objectives and achievements under the
GLL Waste and Recycling Policy in 2019 are below:
»  Achigved zero waste to landfiil by the end of 2019 {within Grundon Contract)
30.1% Recycling rate by weight achieved in 2019 across GLL estate
49.8% of waste recycled in the Region in December 2019
Long term goal to increase recycling to 50% by the end of 2020
Total of 3,200 tonnes of waste collected under GLL managed conlracts
Over 920 tannes of recycled material collected
An estimated total in excess of 1000 tonnes of recycling achieved across GLL.
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Waste and Recycling (continued}
In 2019 GLL began a review of its Waste and Recycling Policy to be impiementad in 2020 covering key objectives and targets

including:

. & & @

Strategy for the removal of single use plastics from GLL premises

Increased separation of food waste and use of compostable catering supplies
85% Recycling target by 2035 in line with Government objectives.

A commitment to "Zero Waste to Landfill" across ail GLL premises.

GLL GREEN - Continuous Investment
GLL continues to invest in Carbon saving technoicgies. For example:

A BEMS (Building Energy Management System) Bureau has been implemented across 71 of GLL's largest energy
consuming faciliies. With a dedicated Bureau manager reviewing the operatienal parameters at each facflity and identifying
changes that can be made fo improve operafional efficiency.

Further roll out is planned for 2020 with the aim of monitoring over 100 GLL premises.

LED Lighting replacement Swindan Link and Corcan Recreation Centre.

Innovative shower installations have besn compisted at a number of premises in the West Region and at London Aquatics
centre o reduce water usage and heating requirements while maintaining the customer experience. Water usage through
the showers dropped by 37%.

The link in Swindon has also benefilted from the installation of Variable speed drives, upgrading of the BMS and controls
systemn as well as a significant invesiment into a mere efficient plant set up.

The Cornwall partnership has completed 2 number of "spend to save” items including boiler upgrades and new efficient air
handling units.

Roll out of GLL's Automatic Metering project has been underway with the target of having ali GLL gas and electricity metets
being read automatically and the data and reporiing available to Managers and suppliers for more accurate billing and
consumplion anadysis.

145 cut of approx. 240 eligible gas meters and 284 out of a target of 324 meters currently have data on line covering 87%
of GLL's electrical usage and 60% of the gas. The final meters wiil be exchanged in early 2020 to give 100% coverage.
Other investments have been completed by the regional teams including Poal cover instatations and replacements, Variable
speed drives and boiler upgrades.

Other investments and projects highlighted for 2020 include:

GLL has agreed power purchase agreements with a Community Solar Company giving the focal community a renewable
energy assel and a return on investments in other community projects in South East London.
Instailations for two Community funded Solar projects at Thamesmere LG and Coldharbour LC are due 1o be installed in
early 2020
A number of capital invest options have been inciuded in the business plan for 2020, key projects being investigated include
o 5 Combined Heat and Power units
o Furher Solar PV installations on GLL owned premises
o Feasibility work into Air and Ground Source Heat pumps to replace traditional gas boilers and specifically at oil
consuming facilities

Energy use in like for like centres year on year
In 2019 the wtility consumption in fike for like centres showed the fellowing results against 2018:

Bas consumption reduced by just over 3% overall, saving of 8.2 m kiwh,
Electricity consumnption decreased by 5%, saving 5.3m kWh
Both Gas and Electricity showed positive reducticns on previous year and both are In excess of GLL's target of a 2%

reduction each year.
The reductions highlight the increased focus on energy efficiency across the organisation in 2019 in addition to the

infroduction of the BMS bureau and a number of energy saving investments.
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Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) regulations

New legisiafion to replace the CRC scheme has been put in place under the Companies {Directors Report) and Limited Liability
Parinerships (Energy & Carbon Reporting} Reguiations 2018. GLL is committed to compiying with the new Regulations as required.
Due to GLL's reporting year starfing before 1st Aprit 2019, GLL is not required to submit a report for 2019,

However, as good practice an energy and carben report have been compiied fo give bassline data and put in place compliant
systems and procedures.

The requlations require large businesses to measute and report on its tolal Carbon Footprint covering erissions from direct gas
and fossil fuel combustion (Scope 1), electricity and delivered heat {Scope 2) as well as business and staff travel (Scope 3)

GLL’s Total measured foofprint was 85,495 (YCO2s), below is a summary of GLL's total 2019 Carban Footprint. As can be seen
fram the breakdown over 60% of GLL's emissions are generated from its gas and fossil fuels use, whereas travel cutrently makes

up iess than 1%.

Gas 53,396.05 Electricity 29,171.83 Car - Diese! 255.70
Heating Oil 320.26 Supplied Heat 1,896.86 Car - Petrol 227 .64
Altsrnative Fuels 87.75 Renewable Heat 0 Car - Hybrid 12.06
LPG 31.33 Renewable Electricily 0 Taxis 0.29
Bio oil 1.83 CHF Electricity a Trains 11.63
Biomass 32.59 Flights 40.44

Scope 1 53,879 Scope 2 31,069 Scope 3 548

As part of the regulations GLL is required to monitor and report emissicns against an appropriale metric, the table below shows
GLL's 2019 emissions as a ratio against its total operational floor area, turover and customer visits. These will be reviewed in

2020 and then used and a measure moving forwards for SECR compiiance.

Value 303 918 60
Emissions ({C02e} 85,495 85,495 85,495
Ratio 282 93.12 1425
L

Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme
fn July 2019, GLL registered a CRC Annua footprint of 70,657 ¥CO2e n the final year of the scheme (2018/13).

The allowance cost for GLL's last year's compliance was £740,000 showing the significant financiai impact of the scheme.

The CRC Scheme has now ended and final reporting and the surrender of allowances took place between July and October 2019,

Awards and Recognition
GLL continuas to hoid 1S014001:2015 with external audits and certification completed in
June 2019. in addition to the existing premises, GLL successfully added St Austeil Leisure

Centre in the Cornwall Partnership in November 2019,
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FfOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2619

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE and DELIVERING CUR AMBITION

At the time of writing this report, the world has been hil by the COVID-19 pandemic. Athough in itself it has thrown significant short
and medium term chailenges for us all, our overali ambitions remain the same.

It is our belief that the pandemic will have lasting impact on how we operate and how our communities interact with us. We are
embracing these changes including the intreduction of more technologies and a review of the services for a sustainable fufure.

In the short term, we are chalienging everything we do. We are accepting and using these extracrdinary circums{ancss as a launch
pad to reshape our services and operation for the better, Together with aur partners (whom we thank), we are confident of a bright
future once we have navigated through these challenging times.

As a charitable social enterprise, GLL's social responsibility will always remain central to each part of our business.

Evarything we do now and will do in the future must ‘add value’ and improve the fives and health of the communities we serve, it is
important for us therefore that the public understand the difference between GLL and some other types of providers and we will
werk hard to demonsirate this difference in ali we do.

Our vision is to be recognised as:

Leading service provider in the Sector

Partner of choice for our Clients

Provider of cheice for our customers

Robust and sucsessful charitable business with a secure long term future
Social Enterprise exemplar

Staff Owned organisation that is an employer of choice for our employees

We will continue to work lirelgssly to promete and protect the reputation and standards of genuine charitable and social
organisations within our sector and co-operatively work with others on this agenda.

FUNDRAISING

GLL do not use professional fundraisers in order to raise funds and do not do fundraising activities to further our objectives. Alf of
our income is derived from main sources being sales for use of facilities and management fees. We do get some grants however
this is not fundraising. GLL aiso receive sponsorship from corperate suppliers to support GLL foundations but again this is not
deemed fo be fundraising.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDING STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENGED 31 DECEMBER 2019

STATEMENT OF COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee of Management are responsible for preparing the Report of the Committes of Management incorporating a Strategic
Report and financial statements in accordance with applicabie faw and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including FRS102 (the financial reporting standard applicable in the UK and R.O.I),

Sociely law requires the Committee of Management to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Society and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the inccme and
expenditure, of the Sociely for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the management board are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and the principles in the Charities SORP 2019 (FRS 102);

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable acccunting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures explained in the
financiai statements;
prepare the financial siatements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Socisty will continue
in business.

The Committee of Management are respensible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Society's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positicn of the Society and enable them
10 ensure that the financial statements comply with the Co-cperative and Community Benefit Sccieties Act 2014, They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Society and the Group and hence for taking reasanable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irreguiarities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITCRS

in so far as the Committee of Management are aware at the time of approving the Report of the Committee of Managerment, there
is no relevant information (as defined by the Co-operative and Community Beneft Societies Act 2014} of which the Society's auditors
are unaware, and each committee member has taken ail the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Commiltee Member in
order to make himself or herself aware of any audit information and to establish that the Society’s auditors are aware of that

information.

Committee of Management raport, incorporaling a strategic report, approved by order of the committee members, on 01/10/2020
and signed on the Committee of Management's behalf by:

etecir ,/:/fé“——
J M Sesnan -~ Committee Member G Kirk - Committee Member
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TQ THE MEMBERS OF
GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the Group and the Society financial statements of Greenwich Leisure Limited for the year ended 31 December
2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, Consclidated Balance Sheet, Society Balance Shesl,
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framewark thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, Including FRS 102 the financial reporting standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial stalements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and Society’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
s have been preparad in accordanca with the requirements of the Co-operative and Cammunity Benefit Societies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the society in accordance with the sthical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other sthical respensibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related fo going concern

We draw atfention to note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic has had a
detrimental impac! on the trading results of the Group and Society. As stated innote 1 these events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in nole 1 indicate that a materiai uncertainty exists which may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Society's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is nof modified in respect of this matter.

Other infarmation

The committee of management is responsible for the other infarmation. The ather information comprises the information included
in tha annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financiad statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge cbtained In the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or 2 materiat misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in light of the knowledge and undersianding of the group and sociely and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not ideniified material misstatements in the Repori of the Commitiee of Management,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Go-cperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014
requires us to report fo you if, in our opinion:

» the society has not kept proper bocks of account, and not maintained a satisfaciory system of control over its fransactions,
in accordance with the requirements of the legislation; or

+ the revenue account, any other accounts to which our report relates, and the balance sheet are notin agreement with the
soclety’s books of account; or

¢ wa have nat obtained all the informaticn and explanations necessary for the purposes of our audi,

Responsibilities of the committee of management

As expiained more fully in the committee of management's responsibiliies statement set cut on page 22, the committee of
management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view,
and for such internal conirof as it determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the committee of management is responsible for assessing the society's ability to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the committee of management either intends to liquidate the sociely or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternafive but to do
$0.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whoie are free from material
missiatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a
high tevel of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists., Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterments is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespansibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Society's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 87 of the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Society's members those matters we
are required fo state fo them In a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fulfest extent permitted by law, we do noi
accept or assume responsibifity to anyone ather than the Soclety and the Society's members as a bady, for aur audit work, for this
report, or fgithe opinions we have formed.

Clair Rayner FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditer)
for and on behalf of McCabe Ford Williams
Statutory Auditors and Chartered Accountants
Bank Chambers

1 Ceniral Avenue

SITTINGBOURNE

ME10 4AE

Date . 01/10/2020
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments
Investment property

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks

Debtors; amounts falling due
within one year

Debtors. amounts falling
after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within
ohe year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Notes
16
17

18
19

20
21

21

22

TOTAI. ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Amaunts failing due after more
than one year

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING
PENSION LIABILITY

PENSION LIABILITY

FUNDS

Unrestricted funds
Designaled funds

Totaj unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

Share capital

TOTAL FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS EXCLUDING
PENSION LIABILITY

23

2

29

30

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

31.12.19 311219
Total Tolal
Funds Funds
£ £
105,597
58,679,682
286,808
1,125,367
61,197 454
797.673
37,621,028
4,804,679
23,850,747
67,164,127
(68,832,192)
g ,668,085)
59,529,389
(20,457,153)
38,072,236
37,937,000
387,801
518,188
906,989
180,797
47 450
1135236
30,072,236

31.12.18 31.12.18
Total Total
Funds Funds
£ £
215,715
61,412,441
12
1,108,514
62,734,682
630,781
36,765,977
5,712,145
17,372,425
60,481,338
64,678,896
(4,197,558)
58,537,124
(20,409,628)
38,127 496
28,434,000
8,895,301
567,145
9,462,446
188,700
42,350
9,693,498
38,127,496

The financial statements were approved by the Committee of Management on 01/10/2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

J M Sesnan - Committee Member
Society Registered Number:

IP27793R

G Kirk ~ Committee Member

The notes form part of these financiai statements
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Ihvestments
[nvastment property

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks

Debtors; amounts falling due
within one year

Debtors: amounts falling due
after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hang

CREDI|TORS
Amounts failing due within
one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Notes
16
17

18
19

20
21

21

22

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more
than one year

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING
PENSION LIABILITY

PENSION LIABILITY

FUNDS

Unrestricted funds
Designated funds

Total unrestricled funds
Restricted funds

Share capital

TOTAL FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS EXCLUDING
PENSION LIABILITY

23

27

29
30

SOCIETY BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
31.12.19 31.12.19
Total Total
Funds Funds
£ £
105,597
59,679,681
286,808
1,125,367
61,197,453
797 673
37,621,028
4,894 679
23,777,231
67,090,611
68,758,677
(1,668,066)
59,529,387
(20,457,153)
36,646,000
1,678,799
516,188
2,197,987
180,797
47,450
2,426,234
39,072,234

31.12.18
Total
Funds

£

630,791
36,765,977

5,712,145

17,293,956

60,402,869

64,658,461

9,377,167

567,145

311218
Total
Funds

£

215,715
57,914,335
3,661,018

1,106,514

62,897 582

(4,255,592)

58,641,980

(20,409,628)

38232362

28,057,000

9,844,312
188,700
42,350

10,175,362

30232362

The financial statements were approved by the Committee of Management on 01/10/2020 and were signed on its behaif by:

<
‘“*\ MW’{
F Donnay - Secretary

J M Sesnan - Commitlee Member
Society Registered Number:

IP27793R

The rotes form part of these financial siatements

G Kirk — Committee Member
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest
Rent

Sale of fixed assets

Purchase of invesiment property
Disposal of investments

Sale of investment property
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investmants

Cash used on investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowing

New loans issued

Share issue

Shares cancelied

Cash used in financing activities

(Decrease)fincrease in cash and
cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Total cash and cash equivalents af the end of the
year

Notes

1

Page 28

31.12.19
£

14,778,012

(484,278)
122,479

360,583
(18,853)

(7,875,862)
(285,796)

8,182,727)

(122,063)

11,050
(5,950)

{116,063)

6478322

17,372,425

23,850,747

31,12.18
£

13,636,501

1534,393)
(33,726)

146,348
(270,410)
(8,867)
1,149,518
(14,234,238)

(13,785,668)

(14,952,693)
9,750,000
6,250
{7.400)

(5,203,343

(5,353,019

22725435

17,372,425




GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

31.12.18 311218
£ £

Net (outgoing)fincoming resources before other recognised gains and losses (2,690,361} {1,218,945)
Amortisation of goodwill 110,118 110,118
Depreciation charges 9,285,244 9,035,603
(Surplus)Deficit on disposal of fixed assets {17,206) 52,704
Surplus on disposat of investment property - (973,764}
Interest received {16,504) (30,777)
Interest paid 501,182 565,170
Rents received {141,550) {27,099}
Rental expenses paid 19,071 60,825
increase in stocks (166,852} (126,166)
{Increase)/Decrease in debtors (37,585) 3,037,719
increase/(Decreasa) in creditors 4,322,885 (42,887)
Interest cost on defined benefit pension scheme 784,000 986,000
Expected return on defined benefit pension scheme - -
Administrative expenses 68,000 77,000
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 2,778,000 2,431,000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 14,778,012 13,636,501

2, ANALYS{S OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The amaunts disclosed on the Statement of Cash Flows in respect of cash and cash equivalents are in respect of these
Statement of Financial Position amounts;

311219 31.12.18

£ £
Cash in hand 22,262,050 15,787,151
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) 1,598,697 1,585,274
Total cash and cash eguivalents 23,850,747 17,372,425

The notice deposits are sums held on interest bearing deposit with Lioyds Bank. The funds are heid on a 32-day nofice account
and are therefore classified as cash and cash equivalents.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

NOTES 70O THE CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Soclety status

GLL is a registered Society limited by shares under the Co~operative and Community Benefit Socisties Act 2014 and is
incorparated in the United Kingdom. The address of the registered office is given in the society information on page 1 of these
financial statements.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is the Pound Sterling {£).

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financlal statements have been prepared in accordanca with Accounting and Repetting by Charities: Statement of
Recomimended Practice applicable to charities preparing thelr accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019) — Charities SORP (FRS 102), the Financial
Reporiing Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102} (effective 1 September 2019) and the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014,

Greenwich Leisure Limited meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102, Assets and liabilities are initiaily
recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy note(s).

The financial slatements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, modified i include
certain itemns at fair vaiue. The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the society.

Going concern

The outbreak of COVID-18, which has taken place following the year ended 31 December 2018, has resulted in a pandemic
causing extensive disruption across the giobe. The COVID-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020, The resulting Impact
of the virus on the operations of the group and the society and measures taken by various governments to contain the virus
have negatively affected the group and seciety’s results in the current financial year. The currenly known impacts of COVID-
19 on the group are:

= Asignificant reduction in income throughout March 2020 as cases of COVID-19 began to rise in the United Kingdom

= The closure of all leisure facifities in the United Kingdom by the UK government an 23 March 2020 which resuited in
no income from primary purpose trading activities from 21 March 2020 through to the reopening of facifities. Facilities
in Northesn lreland were permitted to reopen on 11 Juiy 2020, in England 25 July 2020 and in Wales on 10 August
2020.

= A reduction in incame compared to previous years from reopening due to the measures that are reguired to ensurs
our facilities are COVID secure. The required measures limit the services offered and capacity of leisure sites.

=  These developments have resulted in an operating loss for the period since 1o the batance sheet date.

s Cur finance covenants for existing facilities require a fixed charge cover ratio of 2:1 which in querter 1 of 2020 was
breached. In light of the COVID-19 pandsmic the bank agreed to waive the breach of the fixed charge covenant of
15 March 2020.

The full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the group and society are still unknown.

»  the impact of changes in customers behaviour and confidence levels as a result of the continued existence of the
pandemic in our society is currently unknown and if customers do not return to sites as anticipated this will have a
significant impact on revenue generation.

*  The government continues to implement measures ‘o imit the spread of the virus and, as a result, there is a risk of
local fockdowns which may have an impact on our revenues.

= Afurther nationwide lockdown similar to the one imposed in March 2020 would have a significant impact on revenus
and, without a further package of government support, would have a significant impact on the Group and Society's
abiiity to realise is assets and setile ifs liabilities in the ordinary course of business,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Going concern {continued)
In response to these matters, the entily has taken the following mitigating actions:

We have taken and confinue to take advantage of the coronavirus job retention scheme.

We have taken advantage of the deferral of the March 2020 VAT liability which is now due to be paid in March 2021,

We have negctiated an instalment arrangement with HM Revenue & Customs for the payment of PAYE fiabilities.

We have obtained from ourlenders a waiver of the breach of our covenants and are negotiating changas to covenants

for future periods as part of the refinancing negotiations.

»  We have successfully negotiated with our local authority partners financiai support packages across a large part of
the business for the closure period.

» in addition we continue fo work with our local authority pariners to securs further financial support for the initial
reopening period.

= We have established across all of our contracts a minimum viable offering of services from reopening.

s We have not reopened fatilities that under current circumstances wouid not be viable,

v We have put new hygiene measures in place at our gyms, poofs, fitness classes and culfural facifities in fine with
coronavirus regulations.

»  Allvisits to our leisure facifities must be pre-booked.

v  Facililies are cashless.

v We are negotiating with cur bank to secure additional finance faciities of £10 milfion.

Group and Society wide forecasts have been produced and are based on the original forecasts for the foreseeable future
prepared prior to the advent of COVID-18, adjusted for the impact of the lcckdown period and measures that have been put
in place in readiness for recpening. The key assumptions regarding revenue are based on the cuirent expectations when
various facilities can reopen and when the various activities can resume and the level of usage that can be achieved over the
petiod covered by the forecast rising to @ maximum of 80% of historic usage achieved over a period of months. Usage forecasts
have been based on the independent UK Active report 'COVID-19 Impact Report, the Fitness and Leisure Sectors path to
recovery’, and data peculiar to our facilities. Management have carried out an extensive review of the underlying cost base
of the business and have factored in changes and restructuring that are liksly to be implemented as a resuit in the impact of
COVID-19 on the business which have been reflected in the forecasts, The forecasts include a level of financing that is
surrently being negotiated as well as refinancing that is expected to be agreed over the period of the forecast. The original
capital sxpenditure programme has been delayed unfil a point where the economic conditions may be more certain. These
forecasts indicate that the Group and Society will remain within iis financing facilities for the foresesahle future and will be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. However, in the current climate, it is extremely difficult to arrive at refiable
expectations on which to base assumptions. If the key assumptions are not achieved as a result of the uncertainties noted
above, this may cast doubt on the Group and Society's ability to continue to operate.

Although it Is not certain that these efforts will be successful, the committee of management has determined that the actions
that it has taken are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainties and has therefore prepared the financial reporting on a going
concern basis.

There are material uncertainties related to the events and conditions set out above that may cast significant doubt upon the
group and society's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore whether the group will realise its assets and settle its
liahilities in the ordinary course of husiness at the amounts recorded in the financial statements.

Group financial statements

The financial statements consolidate the results of the Seciety and its subsidiaries: GLL {Trading} Limited and North Country
Leisure Limited, on & line by line basis. Although a separate Statement of Financial Activilies and Income and Expendilure
Account is not required for the Society itsedf, it has nonelheless been included as an appendix.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the Committee of Management in furtherance of the general

objectives of the Society and which have not been desighated for ofher purposes. Desighated funds comprise unrestricted
funds that have been set aside by the Committee of Management for particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated
fund, where refevant, is set out in the notes to the financial statements. Restricted funds are funds which are fo be used in
accordance with specific restrictions imposed by donors or which have been raised by the Society for particular purposes. The
cast of raising and administering such funds are charged against the specific fund. The aim and use of each restricted fund,
where relevant, is set out in the nates to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Income
Al incoming resources from recreation, leisure sites and heaith activities are included an the Statement of Financial Activities

when the Society is legally entifled to the incorme and the amount can be quanified with reasonable accuracy.
Monthly direct debit subscriptions are recognised on the first day of the period in which they are paid.

Income represents net saies of goods and services and management fees exciuding value added fax, to cuslomers during
the year.

Under cerfain contracts that the Society has entered into, the Soctety is entitled to management fees. As part of the
agreements the Society agrees to undertake improvements to facilities, The management fees agreed reflect the leve! of
investment that is to be undertaken and the anticipated increase in the cperating resufts of the facility once the improvements
have been completed.

Management fees are often paid in equal instaiments over the life of the contract. However the Society recognises the
management fee in accordance with the expected profile of the operating resulls and contracted lifecycle maintenance.

Rastricted income is included when the Society is legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with
reascnable accuracy.

Grants/other funding

Grants recelvable in respect of a specified period relating to the general activities of the Society are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which they become receivabie. Where refated expenditure has not been
incurred the grant is deferred only when the donor has imposed restrictions on the expenditure of resources which amount lo

pre-conditions for use.

Expenditure

All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related
to the category. Where cosis cannot be directly atfributed to particular headings they have been alfocated to activities on a
basis consistent with the use of the resources. Resources expended inciude aitributable VAT which cannot be recovered.

Support costs allocation

Suppart costs are those that assist the work of the Seciety but do not directly represent charitable activities, They are incurred
directly in support of expenditure on the objects of the Society. Where support costs cannot be directly attributed to particular
headings they have been allocated to expenditure on charitable activities an a basis consistent with use of the resources.

Taxation
The Sociely is exempt from carporation tax on its charitable aclivilies, Whera the Soclety conducts trading activities corporation

{ax is charged on the profits arising from these activities.

Goodwil
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Identiiable net assets of the acquired

business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising from such acquisitions is included in infangible assets. The goodwill is
then amortised over its expected useful life. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the end of the first full financial year after
acquisition and then if events or changes in circumstances indicate that carying values may not be recoverable. Any
impairment is recognised immediately in the statement of financial activities. Subsequent reversals of impairment losses for
goodwill are not recognised. This does not apply for the acquisition of subsidiaries, which are treated as business

combinations.

Tangibie fixed assets
Fixed assets are shown in the financial statements at cost including irrecoverable VAT in respect of these assets. Depreciation

is proviged at the following annual rates in order to wlte off each asset over its estimated useful life or, if held under a finance
lease, over the lease term, whichever is the shorter,

Land and buildings -straight fine over up fo 50 years or over the lease term, whichever Is sherler
Plant ~3lraight fine over up to 10 years
Improvements to property -straight fine over up to 10 years, Where a confract expires in less than 10 years

and there is not an ability 1o pass the unamortised costs back to the Council or
ancther operater, costs are to depreciaied over the remaining periads in the
contract.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ continued

Tangible fixed assets - cantinued

Heaith & Fitness Equipment - siraight line over § years, Where a contract expires in less than 5 years anc
there is not an ability to seli on or remove the eguipment al the end of the
contract, costs are depraciated aver the remaining periods in the contract.

Equipment, fixtures and fitlings -straight line aver 4 years. Where a contract expiras in less than 4 years and
there is not an ability to sell on or remove the plant or machinery at the end of
the contract, costs are depraciated over the remaining pericds in the contract.

Mofor vehicies -straight fine over 4 years

Pensions

The Sociely operates pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay and career average related
earnings. Confributions to the defined benefits scheme are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in order to allocata
the cost of providing the pensions, recognising any actuarial surplus or deficiency (where appropriate) over the working fives
of the relevant employees as assessad in accordance with the advice of professionally qualified actuarigs. The assets of the
scheme are held separatefy in an independently administered fund.

in respsct of those defined benefit pension schemes whers the locai authority has indemnified the Society against changes in
the employer contribution rate and any fiabliity which may become payable as a resuit of the termination or expiry of a contract,
the amount charged to the Statement of Financial Activities represents the contribution payable to the scheme in the
accounting pericd without any actuarial adjustment.

Contributions to defined contribution pensicn schemes are charged to the Stalement of Financial Activities as incurred.

Business combinations

Business combinations, except for fransactions between entiies under common control, are accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting. The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities are measured at their fair values at the date
of the acquisition, Where control of an entity has been transferred to the Society, the difference between the consideration
and the fair vaiue of the assets or liabiiities is treated as a donation or an expense as appropriate.

Service Concession Arrangements
The Society has Service Coniracts with Local Authorities for the maintenance and operation of leisure centres and libraries

owned by the respective Authorities to which it has lease and management service contracis. The Authorities have rights
under the contracts to specify the activities offered by the centres and have influence over the prices charged for them and
aiso may have certain exclusive rights for the use of the centres at certain times. The contracls specify minimum s{andards
for the services to be provided, with deductions from the service management fee payable being made if facilities are
unavailable or performance is below the minimum standards.

Property, plant and equipment

The buifdings and plant at the centres are leased fo the Society as part of the overall contractual relationship with
the respective Authorities but the Authorities maintain ultimate control of these assets. Accordingly the access which
the Sociely has in the use of these asseats is to enable it fo operate the leisure cenires, so that the Society can provide
the public service it is contracted io provide, not to effeclively own these public service assets. These assets are
therefore not recognised on the Society's Balance Shest.

Receipls
The Society, in some cases, receives an agreed payment from the Authorities each year which may in certain cases
be adjusted each year by inflation and can be reduced if the Society fails fo meet availability and performance

standards in any year but which is ctherwise fixed.

In cases where the receipt from the Authority includes funding for specific works to be carrisd out in accordance with
specifications lai¢ down in the contract but which has not been spent at the yearend a provision is included in the

financial statements to reflect this.
Stocks

Stocks consist of purchased goods for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, on a first-in-first-out
basis, after making due aflowance far obsolete and slow moving ilems.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investment property
Investment properties, which comprise holiday lets, are shown at the most recent vaiuation. Any aggregate surplus or deficit
arising from changes in market value is transferred to the income and Expendilure account.

In accordance with FRS 102 the properties are not depreciated and are valued at fair value at the reporting date by the
Committee of Management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present oblfigation (legaif or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required te meet the obligation and a refiable
astimate can be made of the amount of the obfigation. Where appropriate, the future cash flow estimates are adjusted fo
refiect the known circumstances relating to the fiability.

Centingent liabilities are possible cbligations whose sxistence will only be confirmed by future avents net whelly within the
control of the Society or a present obligation which cannot be reliably estimated. Centingent liabilities are not recognised in
the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is considered remote.

Impairment

Assets not measured at fair value are reviewed for aty indication that the asset may be impaired at each balance sheet date,
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel, or the asset’s cash generating unit, is estimated and compared
to the carrying amount. Where the cairying amount exceeds its recoverable ameunt, an impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Leases
Assets acquired under finance leases or hire purchase contracts are capitalised and depreciated over the shorer of the lsase

lerm and the expected useful iife of the asset. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the oulstanding iease liabifity using the effective interest method. The reiated obfigations, net of future finance

charges, are included in creditors,

Rentais payable and receivable under operating leases are charged o the Statemenl of Financial Activilies on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease,

Social Bond
The social bond has been stated at the amount of its net proceeds. Netf proceeds are the fair value of the consideration

received in respect of the bond after the deduction of issue costs.

The issue costs are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities at a constant rate on the carrying amount of the bond.,

Debtors recaivable and creditors payable within one year
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payatle within one year are recorded at transaction price,

Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in expenditure.

Dehtors' receivable and creditors’ payable over one year
Debtors and crediters are stated at value due as an appropriate interest/discount rate is effectively appiied.

Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are inifially recognised at the transaction price including iransaction cosls. Subsequently, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. If an arrangement constiltes a finance

transaction it is measured at present value,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncartainty

In the application of the Society's accounting policies management is required ic make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and undeslying assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered lo be reievant. Actual

results may differ from the estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affacts both current and future periods.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - continued
Management consider the following lo be key sources of estimation uncertainty which would have a significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

A number of actuarial assumptions are used to quantify the Group’s pension liability in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes. Further information conceming these assumptions can be found in note 27.

The Sccisty in recognising some management foe income does so in accordance with an expected profile of operaling resuits,
the amounts recognised in advance are included in the accounts as debtors due greater than one year.

Management Fee recognition

Management fees are recorded in the financial statements in line with the contract, this can be one of two methods. Method
one requires the racognition of the management fee on a cash receiptipayment basis with the management fee released to
the SOFA as and when ¢ostincome is recognised. This often leaves no balance sheet amount held other than a monthiquarter
in arrearsiprepaid. Method two is whereby the management fee released to the P&L differs to the amount receivedipald due
to the amount being receivedipaid spiit more eventy throughout the life of the coniract or {o cover the additional costs incurred
at the start cf a contract. Method two leads to a balance sheet amount being heid to take into account the timing differences
between the amounts recognised and received/paid.

Financial instrumenis
The company enters into basic financial instruments that result in the recognition of financial assets and liabilities llke trade

and other accounts receivable and payable, joans from banks and other third parties and loans to related parties.

a) Trade and other debtors
Trade and other debtors are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated ai amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts except where the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment lcsses for bad and doubtful debts.

b} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents comprise cash ai bank and on hand,

¢} Impairment of financiaf assets
Financial assels that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each reporiing period for objective
svidence of impairment. if cbiective evidence of impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured st amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between an asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effeclive interest rate. If a
financial asset has a variable intarest rats, the discaunt rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

For financial assets measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between an assef’s
carrying amaunt and the best estimate, which is an approximation, of the amount that the company would receive for the asset

if it were to be sold at the reparting dats.

d) Trade and other creditors

Debt instruments fike loans and ather accounts payable are initially measured at present value of the future payments and
subsequently at amorlised cost using the effective interest methad. Debt instruments that are payabie within one year, typically
trade payables, are measured, inifially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration
expected to be pald. However, I the arangements of a shor-ferm instrument constitute a financing lransaction, like the
payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normal business terms or financed at a rate of intarest that is not a markef rate or in
case of an outright short-term loan not at market rate, the financial asset or liability is measured, initially and subsequently, at
tha present vafue of the fulure payments discounted at @ market rate of inlgrest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and fiabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financiaf position when there is an
enforceable right o set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and

seltie the lability simultaneously,
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Fereign eurrency

in accordance with FRS102 section 30, GLL fransiate foreign currancy fransactiens using the spot exchange rate.

The value of foreign currency is adjusted at the year-end for movements in the spol rate at this time.

Non-menetary items are recognised at the historic rate and non-monetary iterns measured at fair value translated at the rate

of the date when the fair value is re-measured.
Differances are recognised through the SOFA.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE SOCIETY
The financial activities shown in the Group Statement of Financial Activities include those of the Society's subsidiaries: GLL

{Trading} Limited and North Country Leisure Limited.

A summary of tha financial activities undertaken by the Society is set out below:

311218 311218
£ £
Gross incoming resources 302,377,910 295,025,990
Investment management costs {19,071) {60,825)
Total expenditure on chariable activities (304,734,365) (295,687,361)
Govemnance costs (100,371} {96,405)
Other resources expended {104,341} (229,283)
Met incoming resources (2,580,228) (1,047,884)
Actuarial (loss)fgain on defined benefit pension scheme (5,174,000) 8,367,000
Pass-through arrangement - {1,612,000)
(7,754,228) 5,707,116
INCOME
311219 311218
£ £
Daonatlons as a result of business combinations - 779,292
- 779,282
INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
311218 31.12.18
£ £
Operation of leisure, recreation 263,359,639 253,271,646
sites and health activities
Management fees 32,064,478 38,229,417
Other funding 2,270,760 2,499,955
208,194,877 284,001,018

INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES - COMMERCIAL TRADING OPERATIONS
A summary of the trading results of the Group is shown below (this represents the results of GLL (Trading) Limited for the

period):

31.42.19 3.1218
£ £
Turnover 4,256,573 4,054,186
Cost of sales and administration cosis (3,935,771) {4.013.801)
Net profit/{ioss) 320,802 40,385
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6. INVESTMENT INCOME

31.12.18 31.42.18

£ £
fnterast received 16,904 30,777
Rent 141,550 27,098
158,454 57,878

7. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COSTS

31.12.48 31.12.18

£ £
|nsurance 1,832 3,121
Rates and water 841 -
Light and heat 1,682 5,278
Equipment purchases (845} 7,814
Legal fees 3,658 16,311
Site services 12,036 26,877
Other expenses (133) 7424
19,071 60,825

The above are costs incurred in relation to management and maintenance of the Society's investment properties.

8, RESOURCES EXPENDED ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES EXPENSES

Direct Support 31.12.1¢ 31.12.18

Costs Costs Total Total

{see note 9) Charitable Charitable

Activities Activities

As Restated

£ £ £ £

Leisure, recreation and heaith activities 283,300,785 17,040,296 301,241,081 295,807,408

3. SUPPORT COSTS
Support costs, included in the above, are as follows:

31.42.19 31.12.18
Operation of Operatian of
leisure, lgisure,

recreation sites  recreation sites
and heaith and heatith

aclivities activities

£ £
Wages 5,723,929 5,767,220
Premises expenses 10,661,249 9,274,280
Motor and traved 371,131 374,15
Overheads 1,024,435 1,126,762
Governance costs (note 10) 159,552 96,405

17,940,296 17,178,682
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

GOVERNANCE COSTS

Auditors' remuneration
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit work
Auditors' remuneration for audit of subsidiary accounts

OTHER RESCURCES EXPENDED

Social Bond issue costs
Social Bond interest payable

NET INCOMING/{OUTGOING) RESOURCES

Net resources are stated after charging/{crediting}:

Auditors' remuneration

Auditors' remuneration for non-audit work

Depreciation - cwned assets

Depreciation - assets held under finance lease or hire purchase
Hire of plant and machinery

(Surplus)/deficit cn disposal of fixed asset

Surplus on disposal of investment property

Deficit on disposa! of fixed asset invesiment

Goodwill amoriisation

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' EMOLUMENTS

Committee members’ emoluments

The number of cammitiee members to whom refirement benefits were accruing was as follows:

Defined benefit schemas

31,42.18 3112.18
£ £
73,577 74,705
20,872 15,950
5,622 5,750
100,371 96,405
31.12.19 31.12.18
£ g
. 5,843
104,341 223,440
104,341 226,083
311219 311218
£ £
79,499 80,455
20,872 15,950
9,196,865 8,895,383
68,379 139,720
1,646,901 1,665,930
(17.208) 52,704
. (973,764)
. 8,867
140,118 110,118
31.12.19 311218
£ £
736,651 504,722
8 8

The emoluments paid to commitiee members including the chairman and the highest paid member refer {o salaries and
benefits in kind paid for employment with the Society, For full details see note 14 belew. Commiltee members do not receive

any remuneration in respect of their position as charity irustees,
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS' EMOLUMENTS - continued

Thie value of the committee members’ remuneration was as follows:

31.12.19
£

J M Sesnan 208,494
S Ward -
A Ritchie 50,001
G Kirk 87,453
L Smith .
J Rham -
S Wright 15,237
M Perren 62,044
S Hannen 31,472
E Thorpughgood 41,209
£ Gosden 50,001
J Seale 40,650
K Gainda 46,659
C Dean £5,994
C Myring 21,706
W Warduienska 24 831

Truslees’ Expenses
During the year, reimbursed expenses amounting ta £1,781 (2018 £2,212) were pafd to Trustaes.

31.12.18

£
207,396
58,285
48,843
87,141
18,828
46,535
55,382
81,562
60,014
36,912
49,016
23,475
23,330
27,997

The total amount of employee bensfits received by key management personnel is £794,428 {2018 £767,3686). The Society
considers its key management personnel comprises of the Executive Directors of the Scciely, consisting of M Sesnan, P

Donnay, P Bunday, J Lynch, A Bindon and C Symens.

STAFF COSTS

31.12.19 31.12.18
f £

Wages and salaries (including sacial security and pension costs) 145,050,709 139,863,922
Recharge af North Couniry Leisure Wages and salaries 2,425,429 2,982,669
Redundancy and severance payments 1,416,688 2,084,454
Social Security costs 9,570,172 10,347,398
Recharge of North Country Leisure Social Security costs 149,264 188,283
Pension costs 7,699,897 6,820,039
Recharge of North Country Leisure Pension costs 292,271 355,691
Defined benefit difference between service charge and contributions paid 2,778,000 2,159,000
168,362,430 164,801,456

Redundancy and severance payments in general inciude payments o pension funds in respact of pension strain. However,
included amongst those amounts is £342,495 (2018: £318,756) in respect of mutually agreed setffements, These were made
in addition to contractual arrangements and were made for the benefit of bath the individuals and GLL in the {ong tarm.

The average manthly number of employees during the year was as fallows:

3.12.18 31.12.18

Direct 10,385 10,230

Administration and support 368 353
Management 9 10

10,762 10,593
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STAFF COSTS - continued

The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the following bands was:

311218 311218
£60,000 - £78,000 20 17
£70,001 - £80,000 4 [}
£80,001 - £90,006 9 4
£90,001 - £100,000 3 2
£100,001- £110,000 1 1
£110,001- £120,000 3 3
£120,001- £130,000 - -
£130,001- £140,000 2 3
£14(,001- £150,000 1 1
£150,001- £200,000 - -
£200,001- £210,000 1 1

The number of employees earning in excess of £60,000 {for the year) to whom retirement benefits are accruing:

311218 31.12.18
44 33

TAXATION

The sodiety Is defined for tax purposes as a charitable organisation and accordingly no liability to UK corporation tax has
arisen on the surplus for the current year {2018: £Nil).

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group and Society

Goodwill

7

cosT
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 950,129
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2018 734,414
Charge for year 110,118
At 31 December 2019 844 532
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019 105,597
At 31 December 2018 215,715
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group

cosT

At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2019

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2019
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2019

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Freehoid/
Leasehold L.easehoid Equipment  Motor vehicles
property  improvements Totals
E £ £ £ £
28,373,595 46,801,761 51,040,308 1,017,600 127,233,264
- 3,476,566 3,981.472 417,824 7,875,862
- (3,663) (526,681) {395,550} {925,894}
28,373,595 50,274,664 54,495,099 1,039,874 134,183,232
2763610 25,756,312 36,921,456 378,445 65,820,823
877,058 3,403,562 4,743,852 240,784 9,265,244
- - (321,620) (260,897) (582,517)
3,840,666 29,159 864 41,343,688 359,332 74,503,550
24,732,929 21,114,800 13,151 411 680,542 59,679,682
25,609,985 21,045,445 14,118,862 638,155 61,412,441

Inciuded above are assets with a net book value of £216,038 (2018: £284,418) held under finance leases or hire purchase

contracts.

Freeholdfleaseheid property includes freehold properties with a net book vaiue of £16,383,395 (2018, £16,569,983). Inchuded

in cost of Freehold/Leasehold property is land of £164,438 (2018: £184,438} which is not being depreciated.

There is a charge over the assets at Mayesbrook Park, Lodge Avenue, Dagenhiam in regards fo funding from The English
Sports Council, ~The fundirg received is payable on demand upon breach of any tetms and conditions.

Society

COST

At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2019

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2019
Charge for year
Efiminated on disposal

Al 31 December 2019

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Freehoid/
Leasehold  Improvements Equipment  Motor vehicles
property to property Totals
£ £ £ £ £
24,801,061 46,801,761 £1,040,308 1,017,60C 123,660,730
3,488,105 3,476,568 3,981472 417,824 11,373,867
- {3,663) {526,681) {395,550) {925,394)
28,299,166 50,274,664 54 485 099 1,039,874 134,108,803
2,689,182 25,756,312 36,921,456 378,445 65,746,395
877,056 3,403,552 4,743,852 240,784 9,265 244
- - (321,620 (260,897) (582,517)
3,566,238 29,158,864 41,343,688 359,332 74,423,122
24,732,928 21,114,800 13,151,411 650,542 59,679,681
22,111,879 21,045449 14,118,852 638,155 57,914,335

Freehold/leasehold property includes freehold properties with a net book value of £16,383,995 (2018: £13,210,647). Included

in cost of Freeholdi_easehold property is land of £164 438 {2018; £164,438) which is not being depreciated.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Group
Shares in group Unlisted
undertakings invesiments Totals
£ £ £
CosT
At 1 January 2018 i 1 12
Additions - 286,796 286,796
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019 11 286,797 286,808
Society
Shares in group Uniisted
undertakings investments Totals
£ £ £
COST
Al 1 January 2018 3,661,017 i 3661018
Additions - 286,796 286,796
Disposals {3,661,006) - (3,661,006)
At 31 December 2019 11 286,797 286,808
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019 14 286,797 286,808
At 31 December 2018 3,661,017 1 3,661,018
There were no investment assets outside the UK.
The in-year disposal relates to Gosting Laistre Limited which was dissolved an 31 Uecember 2018,
The Society's investmenis at the balance sheet date in the share capital of companies include the foliowing:
Leisure Partners Limited (Company number 07259179)
Nature of business: Doermant
Class of shares: % helding
Ordinary 100.00
31,1218 31.12.18
£ £
Aggregate capital and reserves 10 10
Woaolwich Phase 5 Management Company Limited {Company number 06292797)
Nature of business: Management Company
Class of shares: % holding
Ordinary 14.29
311219 31.12.18
£ £
Aggregate capital and reserves 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

18, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued

GLL (Trading) Limited {Company number 04234158) - Audit exemption has been claimed in respect of the entity’s
individual accounts in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2008, Greenwich Leisure Limited has
guaranteed all of the liabilities of the company.

Nature of business: Non charitable trading

Class of shares: helding
Ordinary 100.00

314219 31.42.18

£ E

income 4,256,573 3,788,122
Expenditure (3,935,771} (3,691,661)
Profit for the period 320,802 96,461
Gift aid distributions made {320,802) {98,461}
Aggregaie capital and reserves 4 1

Gosling Lelsure Limited (Company number 02880581} - Audit exemption has been claimed in respect of the entity’s
individual accounts in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, Greenwich Leisure Limited has
guaranteed all of the liabilities of the company. The company was dissolved on 31 December 2019,

Nature of business: Management of lefsure services
%

Class of shares: holding
Limited by shares 100.00

311219 311218

£

fncome - 266,083
Expenditure - {322,142)
{Loss)profit for the period . (56,079)
Gifl aid distripution paid - -
Aggregate funds - {56,079)

The Training Room Health and Fitness Limited (Company number 04727904} - Audit exemption has been claimed in
respect of the entity’s individual accounts in accordance with section 478A of the Companies Act 2006, Greenwich
Leisure Limited has guaranteed all of the liabilities of the company.

Nature of business: Management of leisure services
%

Class of shares: holding
Limited by shares 100.00
314219 31,1218
£
Aggregate funds -
Surplus for the period (realisation of revaluation of assets) - -

Norih Country Leisure Limited (Company number 03683103, Charity number 1075009)

Nature of business: Management of leisure services
%

Class of shares: holding
Limited by guarantes 100.00

311218 31.12.18

£ £

Income 2,366,964 3,526,643
Expenditure {3,081,964) (3,558,843}
Other recognised gains and losses (d444,000) 794,000
Surplus/{Deficit) for the year (659,000} 764,000
Aggregate funds (1,291,000} {632,000}
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19.

20.

2,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group and Society Totat
£

COST

At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 1,106,514

Additions 18,853

At 31 December 2019 1,125,367

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 December 2019 1,125,367

At 31 December 2018 1,108,514

In accordance with FRS 102, investment properties are shown at fair value and are not subject fo depreciation. The value of
the properties at the balance sheet dats has been assessed by the Committes of Management who do hot cansider thers o
have been a materiaf change in market vailue since the propertiés were purchased in 2010 when an independent valuation
was carried out by the vendor. The properties purchased during 2012 are included af cost and the Board consider this to be
reflective of the cpen market value at the balance sheet dale.

STOCKS
Group Society
311218 311218 312,19 311218
£ £ £ £
Stocks 797,673 630,791 797,673 630,791
DEBTORS
Group Society
31259 31,1218 31.12.19 31.12.48
Amounts falling due within one year: £ E £ £
Trade debtors 14,246,437 13,788,203 14,246 437 13,788,203
Other debtors 15,849,970 15,389,388 16,848,970 15,388,388
l.oans to employees 105,468 124,059 105,466 124,059
Prepayments and accrued income 2,640,870 2,171,182 2,640,870 2,171,152
Amounts receivable on fong term contracts 4,778,285 5,293,175 4,778,285 5,293,175
37,621,028 36,785,977 37,621,028 36,765,877
Society
31.12.18 31.12.18 31.12.19 31.12.18
Amounts falling due after mors than one year: £ f £ £
Loans to employees 28,536 30,714 28,536 30,714
Amounts receivable on iong term contracts 4,480,729 5,681,431 4,480,729 5,681,431
Other debiors 385414 - 385,414 -
4,804 679 5,712,145 4,894 879 5,712,145
42,515,707 42,478,122 42515707 42,478,122
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

DEBTORS - continued

The Society "other debtors” figure of £16,235,384 (2018: £15,389,388) failing due within one year includes the following key
itemns:
»  Fees dus from local authority cifents and other partners not invoiced at the yearend amounting to £3,285,045 (2018:
£2,952 663);
»  GLL Capital developments works in progress amounting to £4,644,384 (2018: £5,233,218);
Cllent Capital development works delivered as agents by GLL that had not been recharged at the yearend amounting
to £8,295,955 (2018: £7,203,507).

The Saciety “amounts recaivable on fong term contracts” falling due after more than one year of £4,480,725 (2018: £5,681,431)
relates to Council contract management fees recognised in advance of receipt which are recoverable in more than one year,
Under certain contracts, Councils have opted for a “flat line" or "stepped” fee to fit within the Council annual budgets. GLL has
agreed to facilitate these cash flow arrangements at a cost whete appropriate resulting in these debtors.

No membars of the Managemant Commiltee are in receipt of loans to employees.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Society
31.12.49 31,1218 31.12.19 31.12.18
£ £ £ £

Bank loans (see note 24} 246,216 242,264 246,216 242,264
Other loans (see note 24) 367,136 540,676 367,136 540,676
Trade credifors 4,644,585 6,994,127 4,644,585 8,994,127
Other creditors 21,344,588 16,181,704 21,308,193 16,141,187
Sacial security and other faxes 3,838,470 3,334,051 3,801,350 3,296,098
Accrued expenses 21,333,234 23,379,268 21,333,234 23,379,268
Receipts in advance 17,057,963 14,G08,806 17,057,963 14,006,806

Amounts owed to group undertakings 58,035

58,832,192 64,678,896 68,758,677 64,658,461

Defetred income

3M.1219 311218
£ £
Deferred income at 1 January 14,006,806 16,008,225
Resources defefred in the year 17,057,963 14,006,806
Amounis released from previous periods {14,008 806} {16,008,225)
17,057,063 14,006,806

Other Creditors of £21,344,588 (2018: £16,181,704) in the Group and Society accounts includes £2,382,282 (2018
£2,619,462} of 3 party income collected as agent and payable upon receipt of a purchase invoice and £12,079,329 (2018:
£8,877 962} accrued stralus share payable (o local authorlly clients under contractual arrangements,

The Soclety deferred income figure of £17,057,963 (2018: £14,006,806) relates to incoma veceived in advanced to be credited
to the revenue account in the future as and when appropriale, This figure consists of annual management fees for various
contracts refeased over the term of the contract; invoiced income where the prepaid event has not yet ocourred; and current
projects where the income is released as and whan it is required.
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

CREDITORS:; AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Bank loans {see nole 24)
Other loans (see note 24)
Hire purchase (see note 24}

LOANS

An analysis of the maturity of loans fs given below:

Amounts falling due within one year on demand:
Bank loans

Other loans

Hire purchase

Amounts falling due between one and two years:

Barik ioans
Other loans
Hirs purchase

Amounts falling due between two and five years:

Bank ioans
Other lcans

Amounts falling due in more than five years:
Repayable by instaiments

Bank loans

Other loans

In the year anded 31 December 2013 the Seciety issued a Social Bond. The bond was repayable in 5 years. On 4 Oclober
2018, an offer was made to the helders of the existing bonds inviting them to extend the term of their existing bonds. it ranks
pari passu with other unsecured debt and it attracts interest at 3%. This interest is payable annually in arrears at the end of

Celober 2021,

In 2014 the Society ook out a Morigage which is secured as detalled in note 26. This loan is for 25 years and atiracts Interest

Group
3112148 31.12.18
£ £
14,841,224 15,078,514
5,815,928 5,309,308
- 21,805

Society
311219 31.12.18
£ £
14,841,224 15,078,514
5,615,829 5,309,308
21,805

20,457,183 20,409,628

20457153 20,409,628

Group Society

311219 31.12.18 31.42.1¢9 31.12.18

£ £ £ £
246,216 242,264 246,218 242,264
310,043 434,551 310,043 434,551
57,093 108,125 57,083 106,125
613,352 782,940 613,352 782,940
241,474 237,288 241,474 237,288
261,081 300,011 261,081 300,011
- 21,805 - 21,805
502,555 559,104 502,385 559,104

10,500,284 10,487,277
3,604,485 3,515,528

10,500,284 10487277
3,504,485 3,515,529

14,094,769 14,002,806

14,094,769 14,002,806

4,080,466 4,353,949 4,099 466 4,353,949
1,760,363 1,493,769 1,760,363 1,483,769
5,859,829 5,847,718 5,859,829 5847718

at 1.5%. Capital and interest payments are made monthly.
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NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

25,  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Total fulure minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group and Socisly
Land and buildings Equipment
311249 31.12.18 31218 31.12.18
£ £ £ £
Expiring: .
Within one year 4,550,805 4 465,805 143,354 160,357
Between one and five years 18,389,222 17,964,222 57,600 120,203
I more than five years 43,983,629 46,680,608 - -
66,923,656 69,129,633 200,954 280,560

This note reflects the requirements of FRS 102 section 20. For the purposes of the disclosure we have assumed RPI to be
3.0% and calculated the expected lease rent payments in accordance with the terms of the varicus leases.

The buitding leases relate mostly to the stand alone facilifies acquired over the years. The remaining terms of these building
leases range from 4 years to 22 ysars

26. SECURED DEETS

The foilowing secured debts are included within creditors:

31.12.19 31.12.18

£ £
Bank loans 15,087,441 15,320,778
Wandsworth Council 122,076 199,312
Hire purchase 57,093 127,930
Other loans 2,649,147 2,856,347
Yelverton Praperties 3,900 3,800

The English Sports Councit

17,342,956 18,504,367

Bank loan
First legal charge held over leasehold property known as Sporlhouse, Mayesbraok Park, Lodge Avenue, Dagenham dated

31 January 2014.

Bank credit facility
Revolving credit facility agreement secured on properties.

Wandsworth Council loan
Charge over equipment held at Wandsworth Library dated 28 March 2014,

Hire purchase
Hire purchase debts are secured over the assets to which they refate.

Other lpans
A loan of £2,649,147 (2018: £2,856,347) from NewcasHe City Councll,

Yelverton Properties
A rent deposit of £3,900 equal lo the sum of 3 months principal rent relating to Yelverton Properties and is secured with a

fixed charge on the assets of the Society.

The English Sports Couneil

Legal morigage refating to Mayesbrook Park, Lodge Avenue, Dagenham with payment or discharge of secured liabilities
payable on demand upon breach of any terms and conditions.

Page 47



GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

27, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Society operates defined benefit pension schemes for some employees. The Society has admitted body status fo the
pension funds. Contributions to the schemes are charged to the Statements of Financial Activities so as 1o spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working fives with the Scciety in such a way that the pensicn cost is a substantial level percentage
of future pensionable payroll.

Latest acfuarial valuations were carried out af 31 March 2016 and updated at the baiance sheet date.

Group

Defined benefit

pension plans

31.12.18 31.12.18
£ £

Prasent value of funded obtigations (128,990,000)  (103,140,000)
Fair value of plan assels 91,053,000 74,706,000
Present vatue of unfunded obligations (37,937,000} (28,434,000)
Defiit {37,937,000) (28,434,000
Ned liabiity (37,837,000} (28,434,000

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Defined bensfit pensicn plans

31.12.18 31.12.18
£ £
Current service cost 3,306,000 4,556,000
Administrative expenses 68,000 77.000
Net interest cost 784,600 986,000
Lassesf{gains) on curtailments and setitements 1,790,600 161,000
5,948,000 5,780,000
Actual return on plan assets 11,860,204 (4,539,000
The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
Defined benefit
pension plans
3114219 31.12.18
£ £
Actuariat gains (5,873,600) 9,221,000
Pass-through arrangement movement - {1,812,000)

(5,873,000) 7,609,000

Cumulative amount of actuarial josses (18,960,991) {13,087,991)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - continued

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligations are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Contributions by scheme participants
interest cost

Remeasurements

Benefits paid

Past service costs

Administration expenses

Exparience (losses)/gains
Pass-through arrangement movement

Changes in the fair value of scheme assels are as follows:

Fair vaiue of scheme assets
Contributians by employer
Contributions by scheme particinants
Interest on assets

Return on assets less interest
Benefits paid

Other actuarial [osses

Administration expenses
Pass-through arrangement movement

Defined benefit pension plans
311218 31.12.18
£ £

(103,740,000) (108,778,000}
(3,306,000} (4,556,000}
(884,0000) {1,010,000)
(2,954,000) (3,257,000)
{17,054,000) 15,742,000

1,287,000 1,863,000
(1,790,000) (161,000)
(25,000) (26,000}
1,124,000 .
(1,957,000)

(128,990,000)  (103,140,000)

Cefined benefil pension plans

31.12.19 31.12.18
£ £
74,706,000 76,929,000
2,318,000 2,586,000

884,000 1,010,000
2,179,000 2,271,000
9,940,000 (6,144,000)
(1,287,000) (1,863,000}
2,365,000 (377,000)

(43,000) (51,000)

- 345,000

91,053,000 74,706,000

The major categaries of scheme assels as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Equiies
Bonds
Property
Cashfother
Gilts
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Defined benefit
pension plans
311219 31.12.18

52.03% 57.81%
14.53% 16.72%

7.75% 8.42%
24.69% 16.67%
1.00% 1.38%
100.00% 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - continued

As the Group operates multiple definad benefii schemes, the following iable sets out the impact of a small change, in the
largest of the schemes {deficit of £28,477,000 at the balance sheet date}, in the discount rates en the defined benefit obligation
and projected service cost along with a +/- 1 year age rating adjustment to the mortality assumption:

£ £ £

Adjusiment ta discount rate +0,1% 0.0% -0.1%

Present value of total obligation 85,133,000 66,758,000 68,427,000

Projected service cost 2,290,000 2,350,000 2,412,000

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption +1 yaar Nane -1 year

Present value of tofal obligation 69,423,000 66,759,000 64,199,000

Projected service cost 2,439,000 2,350,000 2,264,000

Principal actuanial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

31,1219 314218
Discount rate 2.0%-21% 26%-3.0%
Future salary increases 28%-42% 2.2%-44%
: Future pension increases 24%-2.2% 214% - 24%
| Price increases 2.0%-2.3% 21% - 2.4%
Society
Defined benefit
pension plans
311219 3{.12.18
£ £
, Present value of funded obligations {115,135,000) (82,348,000)
' 78,488,000 64,289,000

Fair vaiue of plan assets

(36,8486,000) (28,057,000

Present value of unfunded cbiigations
(36,646,000 (28,057,000}

Deficit
(36,348,000 {28,057,000)

Net fiability
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - cantinued

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost

Administrative expenses

Net interest cost

Losses/{gains) on curtailments and seftlements

Actual retum on plan assets

The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as foilows:

Actuarial gains
Pass-through arrangement movement

Cumulative amount of actuarial losses

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obiigations are as fofiows:

Defined benefit obiigation

Current service cost

Past service cosi

Contributions by scheme participants
intarest cost

Remeasurements

Benefits paid

Administration expenses

Experiance (gainsilosses
Pass-through arrangement movemant
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Defined benefit pension plans

31.12.18 311218
£ £
2,827,000 4,038,000
68,000 77,000
778,000 965,000
1,600,000 85,000
5,273,000 5,165,000
9,935,204 (4,673,000)
Defined benefit
pension plans
31.12.19 31.12.18
£ £
(5,174,000 8,367,000
- (1,612,000}
{5,174,000) 6,755,000
(13,618,891) {8,444,991)

Defined benefit pensicn plans

31.12.18 31.12.18
£ £
(92,346,000 (98,758,000)
(2,927,000)  (4,038,000)
(1,600,000) (85,000)

(815,000) (921,000)
(2,643,000)  (2,983,000)
(14,735.000) 14,769,000
1,080,000 1,653,000
(25,000) (26,000)
(1,124,000) ;

(1,957,000)

(115,135,000 (92,346,000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATICNS - continued

Changes in the fair value of scherne assels are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

311219 311218
£ £

Falr value of scheme assets 64,289,000 87,012,000
Assets acquired on settlements - (189,000}
Coniributions by employer 1,958,000 2,089,000
Contributions by scheme participants 815,000 921,000
interest on assets 1,865,000 2,018,000
Return on assets less intersst 8,320,000 (6,025,000)
Benefits pald (1,080,000) {1,464,000)
Other zetuarial losses 2,365,00C (377,600}
Administration expenses (43,600 {51,000)
Pass-through arrangement movement - 345,000
78,489,000 64,289,000

The major categories of scheme assels as a percentage of Inlal scheme assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cashfother
Gifts

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.12.18 31.i2.18
50.52% 58.04%
13.31% 15.51%
7.53% 8.44%
27.42% 16.01%
1.22% 2.00%

100.00% 100.00%

As the Society operates mullipfe defined benefit schemes, the following table sets out the impact of a smalf change, in the
largest of the schemes [daficit of £28,477,D00 at the baiance sheet date), in the discount rates on the defined benefit obligafion
and projected service cost along with a +/~ 1 year age rating adjustment to the mortality assumption:

Adjustment tc discount rate +Dﬁ % OFO% -0.£1 %
Present value of total abligation 65,133,000 86,759,000 68,427 000

Projected service cost 2,290,000 2,350,060 2412000
Adjustment to moality age rating assumption +1 year None -1 year
Present value of total obligation 89,423,000 66,759,000 64,199,000

Projected service cosl 2,439,000 2,350,000 2,264,000

Principal aciuarial assumptions at the baiance sheet date.

31.12.19 311218

Discount rate

Future saiary increases
Future pension increases
Price increases
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - continued

Future employer contribution rates per barough are detailed below:

London Borough of Barnet 17.90% (fixed from 2014/15 to 2018/20)
London Borough of Camden 28.00% (fixed from 2017/18 to 2018/20};
Royal Borough of Greenwich 16.,50% (fixed fram 2014/15 to 2016/20)
CITRUS 32.60% {fixed from 2016117 to 2018/19);
London Borough of Merton 26.40% (fixed from 2017/18 to 2019/20§;
London Borough of Towsr Hamlets 20,00% (fixed from 201718 to 2019/20);
Wiltshire (scheme 1) 16.10%/14.20%M2.20% (fixed from 201718 to 2015/20);
Wiltshire {scheme 2} 21.70% {fixed from 2017/18 to 2019/20);
London Pension Fund Authotity 17.70% {fixed from 2017/18 te 2019/20};
Cambriggeshire County Council 25.10%/25,40%/25,70% (fixed from 201718 to 2019/20);
London Borough of Faling 16.40% (fixed from 2017/18 to 2019/20);

Additional background information
Once again, the volatility of the investment markets and the change in the discount rate have caused the disclosures under
FRS102 section 28 pension fiatiity on the balance sheet to increase.

In 2014, the fiability on the balance sheet jumped from £11m to £20.45m and then reduced slightly to £19.8m In 2015
(exciuding subsidiaries}. This movement was mainly due to the change in the discount rate.

In 20116, the pension's liability doubled from £22.5m io £46m. Again, this was caused by a further drop in the discount rate
dictated by the accounting standard FRS102s28.

The discount rate dropped a litile further in 2017 causing an increase in pension's liabiiities. These were mitigated by a more
refined use of olher assumptions and use of the latest life expectancy model for our largest scheme as well as changes in
contractual relationship with some local authorities that remove the liabilities from the GLL baiance sheet (Bamet — new
contract; Camden — negotiated contract change; Reading — negotiated confract change).

in 2018, the discount rate increased slightly and so the liabililles reduced. In addition, following a review of FRS102
requirements and management contracis in place, it was confirmed that some schemes that had been reported as DB
schames should in fact have been reported as DC schemes in the accounts as the contracts include full pass through of
liabilities upon termination (Greenwich Libraries, Merton, Somerset and Tower Hamlets).

In 2018, the discount rate dropped again increasing the liabilities “on paper” for accounting purposes.

Separately, in 2019, the schemes undenvent their triennial valuations in ordet to “reset” the employer contribution rates for the
3 years starting from April 2020. Under this valuation method, the combined position of the various funds accounted for as DB
in the financial statements amounted to a SURPLUS of £2.6m with most schemes showing as being everfunded. An updated
position of the funds in question was sought and now shows a combined SURPLUS of £4.8m as at the 31st December 2019.

For clarity, these pension disciosures here relate to Defined Benefit schemes GLL is a member of, Most of these are through
membership of the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS).

Pensions’ valuation and disclosure is a difficult and controversial tapic and because of the complexities, it is an area that
requires further explanation. It is impertant to appreciate how the LGPS and other DB pension schemes work and how ongoing
contributions requirements are calculated Yo ensure the scheme remain or become fully funded in the long tem.

FRS162 section 28 is an accounting standard in relation to the calculation and disciosure of company pension scheme
liabilities. 1t requires that employers make full provision for all pension scheme liabilities on their balance sheet - both in
respect of any outstanding employer contributions (there aren't any) and (more significantly) any atiributable share of the
pansion sciieme actuarial deficit in respect of defined benefit schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - continued

The FRS102 pensions fability calcuiation used for accounting purposes are based largely on the actuariat Ongoing Basis
caiculations {such as inflation, life expectancy ete.) but crucially differ in one key respect — that of the discount factor used to
arrive at net present value of any surplus or deficlf, Whereas the "Ongoing Basis® uses estimated actuarial invesiment retums
based on past and expected future performance, the FRS102 calculation uses a return based specifically on AA rated
Government gilts. In recent years, the FR$102 calculation has resutted in a significantly lower discount factor than the Ongoing
Basis — and therefore much higher net present pension scheme deficits. it is therefore quite common for an organisation fike
GLL to take on a new local authority confract and a fully funded pension scheme under the Ongoing Basis onfy to find that
this gives rise 0 a significant FRS102 deficit (which needs full provision in the accounts) due to the specific FRS102 discount
factor required to be used.

Future employer contributions are calculated at each tri-annual actuarial vaiuation. The actuaries calculate the scheme surpius
or deficit based on prevailing assumptions around returns, inflation, discount factors, life expectancy etc, and then calculate
the employer contribution required to a) maintain and provide for current and future pensions and b) reduce any deficit over
time. The employer confributions requirad are communicated fo the employers and remain in place until the next tri-arnual
valuation, For ail LPGS, the fast triennial actuarial valuation was carried out in 2019 and new rates set for 3 years from Apef!
2020,

The employer contribution rates are therefore established by the actuaries on the Ongoing Basis and have no direct linkage
to the FRS102 caiculations or provisions, To put it ancther way, a change in the FRS102 provision does not on its awn impact
the emplayer contribution.

A few key points fo note;

»  GLLis up to date with all required employer contributians i all of its schemes.

e The majority of GLL's employees in DB schemaes are members of one of the LGPS schemes under admissions
agreements - these are subject to tri-annual actuarial valuations which then establish the actuarial surplus or deficit
and the required ohgeing empioyer contribution rates,

«  When GLL secures new contracts, it always takes on a fully funded pension liabifity calcuiated under the actuarial
Ongoing Basis,

«  FRS102 requires a different method of calculaling a pension scheme deficit — based on AA rated bond yields rather
than actuarial forecast investment returns. Due fo this, FR3102 gives rise o significantly higher deficit caicufations

for accounting purpases ~ however it is impartant to understand that FRS102 is not the recognised actuarial methad

to calculaie the necessary contribution rate and almost certainly overstates the actuarial liability in the accounts.
»  GLL's required employer contributions only change every three years based on the fri-annua) acluarial valuation on
the Ongoing Basis. Changes fo the annual FRS102 vaiuation do nol impact GLL's empleyer contribution.

»  Government bond yieids (on which the FRS102 discount factor calculations are based) are at extremely low levels -

this gives rise to higher net present pension scheme deficits. It seems mere ikely that discount factors will inctease
rather than decrease further in fuiure — which should mean accounting deficits are more likely to shirink rather than
increase,

¢ GLL does have jcint and several lfabifity under most LGPSs in which its empioyees are members - aithough we
believe that the major employer (i.2. the local aulhorily} provides an indemnity ta third parties against the failure of
cther third party employers.

In order to ilusirate the differences between the valuation methods, GLL the actuaries to evaluate the position of the funds
under both “FRS1902" for the accounts and under the “ongoing basis" method and assumplions for DB schemes. In addition,
the results may also be shown against the full triennial valuations compieted in 2619 from which future contribution rates will

be derived. The differences are shown below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - continued

Pension Fund (£'000} FRS102 Ongoing Difference
Basis
as at 3111219  as at 31/12/19

GLL

LPFA (4,895) 1,431 6,326
CITRUS Pension Plan (761) (337) 424
Royal Boraugh of Greenwich LGPS (28,477) (420) 28,057
Wiltshire LGPS 1 (Swindon) 550 1,582 1,032
Wiltshire LGFS 2 (Swindon) {1,508} 602 2,110
Narthamptonshire LGPS {Cambridge} {335} 154 489
Copeiand (680) 678 1,358
South Lakes (540) 120 860
Total (35,646) 3,810 40,456
NCL

Newcastle 1 (1,121) 180 1,301
Newcastie 2 {(170) BEC 1,030
Total {1,281} 1,040 2,331
GLL Group Total (37,937) 4,850 42,787

As can be seen by the valualions in the table above, the differences are significant and material. It therefore needs to be
understood when evaluating GLL's financtal position,

The largest differance reiates to the Greanwich Scheme, In 2015, the scheme's Actuaries explained the position as follows.
These comments remain relevant today:

“The most significant reason for this difference Is the change in financial assumptions on the ongoing basis compared to that
of the FRS102 hasis, in particufar that of the discount rate. FRS1G2 prescribes that the discount rafe should be based on
market yiekl's ai the reporting date of ‘high guality corparate bonds’ of equivalent currency and term fo the employer's liabilities.
The discount rate used for all reports was the 23 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA-rated corporale bond yield curve. This
method therefore disregards the actuaf investments of the Fund and assumes that aff assets will earn an invesimen{ refurn in
line with corporate bonds only.

The discount rate used on the ongoing funding basis for each Fund is based on the funding strategy of that Fund. The Royal
Baraugh of Greenwich FPension Fund is invesied in a range of different assets, several of which have a higher expected relum
than that of corporate bonds. As a resuft the discount rate used on the ongoing funding basis is significantly higher than that
on the FRS102 basis, thereby decreasing the value placed on the employer’s liatilities. This effectively means, based on the
assumptions used on the FRS102 basis, significantly more assets would need to be held by the employer in ardsr fo meet the
cost of benefits accrued compared to the ongoing funding basis. This is the main reason for the perceived discrepancy.

it sheuid be noted that the FRST0Z reports are for accounting purposes onty and are not used fo determine canfribitions to
be made from the employer to the Fund, which are based on the ongoing funding position.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Society has insurance cover relating to Performance and Pension Bonds as at 31 December 2019 of £10,286,100 (2018:
£10,286,100).

Included in cash balances is a cash collateral deposit of £60,000 for the benefit of North Somerset Council. This is required
under the terms of the service agreement to operate Churchill Leisure Centre and to facilitate the continuity of service in the

avent of the company ceasing to operate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

29, CALLED UP SHARE CAPTTAL

Group and Society

Allottad, issued and fully paid:

Number; Class: Norninal 3114219 31.12.18
vaiue; £ £

1898 Ordinary £25 47.450 42,350

(2018: 1694)

442 shares (2018: 250) of £25 each were allotted and fully paid for cash at par during the year. During the year 238 shares
(2018; 286 sharas) were forfeited and cancelled due to the members having left the Society,

The Society maintains an up to date register of afl members and their share hoidings.

30, MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Group
Net movement Transfers
At 1.1.19 infunds  between funds At 31.12.1¢
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 37.329,301 947,543 47,957 38,324,801
Pension fiability {28,434 000} (9,503,060) - (37,937,000}
Share capital 42 350 5,100 - 47,450
Deslgnated Fund - Copeland 191,727 - (1) 191,726
Designated Fund - South Lakes 115,418 - (12,77G) 162,648
Designated fund - Firesse 260,000 - (35,186) 224 814
8,504,796 {8,550,387) . 954,439
Restricted funds
For the Girls, by the girls 41218 (200) - 41,018
{ am Tower Hamlels 22,701 (20,504 - 2197
Lincolnshire Arts Council 19,398 1,710 - 21,108
Swindon Zurich 108,627 7,169 - 112,796
Dementia Friendly Swimming (244) 3,922 - 3618
188,700 {7,903) - 180,797
TOTAL FUNDS 9,693,496 (8,558,260) - 1,135,236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Group

Net movement in funds, inciuded In the ahove are as foliows:

Unrestricted funds
General funds
Pension liablity
Share capital

Restricted funds

For the Girls, by the giris

| am Tower Hamlets
Lincolnshire Arts Council
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friendly Swimiting

TOTAL FUNDS

Incoming Resouirces Gains, losses  Movement in
resources expended and transfers funds
£ £ £ £
302,428,683 (301,481,140} - 847,543
- (3,630,000) (5,873,000} (9,502,000}
11,060 {5,980) - 5,100
302,438,733 (305,117,090 (5,873,000) {8,550,357)
- (200 - {200)
17,082 {37,556) - (20,504)
1,710 - - 1,710
26,250 {22,328} - 3,922
136,178 {129,010} - 7,169
184,221 (189,124) - (7,903)
302,620,854  (305,308,214) (5,873,000} (8,558,260)
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30, MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Group - previous year

Unrestricted funds
General funds
Pension liability
Share capital

Designated Fund — Copeland
Designated Fund — South Lakes
Designated fund — Finesse

Restricted funds

Social bond

For the Giris, by the girls
| am Tower Hamiets
Lincoinshira Arts Council
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friendly Swimming

TOTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

At1.1.18  Net movement Transfers
As Restated infunds  hetween funds At 31.12.18
£ £ £ £
35,269,830 2,201,134 (171,663) 37,329,301
(32,848,000} 4,415,000 - {28,434,000)
43,500 {1,150) - 42 350
202,969 - (11,242) 191,727
182,513 - {77,095) 115,418
- - 260,000 ___ 260,000
2,889,812 6,614,984 - 9,504,796
21,500 (21 500) -
41,218 41,218
58,403 {35, 702) 22 701
135,771 (116,373} - 19,398
132,582 {26,955) 105,627
25,305 (25,549) (2443
414,779 {226,079) - 188,700
3,304,581 6,388,905 §,693,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS . continued

Group - pravious year

Net movement In funds, included in the above are as follows:

Unrestricted funds
General funds
Pension liability
Share capital

Restricted funds

Sacial bond

| am Tower Hamlets
Lincoinshire Arts Council
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friandly Swirnming

TOTAL FUNDS

Incoming Resources  Gains,losses  Movementin
Tesources expended  and iransfers funds
£ £ £ £
298,725,638  (296,524,504) - 2,201,134
- {3,194,000) 7,609,000 4,415,000
6,250 (7,400 - (1,150)
208,731,888 (299,725,904) 7,609,000 6,614,984
- {21,500) - {21,500
2,024 (37,726) - {35,702)
- {116,373 - (116,373}
160,539 (187 494) - (26,955)
4,171 (29,720) - {25,549}
166,734 (392,813) - {226,079)
208,808,622 (300,118,717} 7,608,000 6,388,905
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDER 31 DECEMBER 2019

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Society

Unrestricted funds

General funds

Pension liability

Share capital

Designated Fund — Copeland
Designated Fund - South Lakes
Designated Fund - Finesse

Restricted funds

For the Girls, by the girls

I am Tower Hamiets
Lincolnshire Arts Council
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friendly Swimming

TOTAL FUNDS

Net movement Transfers
At 1.1.19 infunds  between funds At 31.12.19
£ £ £
37,434,167 842675 47,957 38,324,799
(28,057,000) (8,588,000} . {36,646,000)
42,350 5,100 - 47 450
181,727 - (1) 191,726
115,418 - {12,770) 102,648
260,000 (35,186) 224,814
8,086,662 {7.741,225) - 2,245,437
41,218 (200) - 41,018
22,701 (20,504) - 2,197
19,398 1,710 21,108
106,627 3,922 - 112,796
{244} 7,169 - 3,678
188,700 {7,903) 180,797
10,175,362 (7,749,128) - 2,426,234
|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Society

Nat movement in funds, included in the above are as foliows:

Unrestricted funds
General funds
Pension liablity
Share capital

Restricted funds

For the Girls, by the girls

| am Tower Hamlets
Lincolnshire Arts Council
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friendly Swimming

TOTAL FUNDS

Incoming Resources  Gains,losses  Movementin
resources expended and lransfers funds
£ £ £ £

302,196,589  {301,354,014) - 842,675
- {3.415,000) (5,174,000} {8,589,000)

11,050 {5,950} - 5,100
302,207,739 (304,774 964) (5,174,000} {7,741,225)
- (200} - (200
17,082 (37,588) - (20,504}
1,710 - 1,710
26,250 (22,328) - 3,922
136,179 {129,010) - 7,168
181,221 (189,124) (7,903}
302,088,158  (304,964,088) (5,174,000} (7,745,128}
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Society - previous year

Unrestricted funds

General funds

Pension fiabitity

Share capital

Designated Fund - Copeland
Designated Fund - South Lakes
Designated Fund - Fingsse

Resftricted funds

Sacial bond

For the Girls, by the girls

| am Tower Hamlels
Lincalnshire Arts Coungil
Swindon Zurich

Dementia Friendly Swimming

TOTAL FUNDS

At1.1,18  Net movement Transfers
As Restated infunds  between funds At31.12.18
£ £ £ £
35,361,635 2,244,195 (171,663} 37,434,167
(31,746,000] 3,688,000 - (28,057,060)
43,500 (1,150 - 42 350
202,969 - 111,242) 191,727
192,513 (77,095) 115,418
- - 260,000 260,000
4,054,617 5,932,045 - 0,986,662
21,500 (21,500) - -
41,218 - - 41,248
58.403 (35,702} - 22701
135,771 {116,373) . 19,398
132,582 (26,955) - 105 827
25,306 (25,549) - {244}
414,779 (226,079 188,700
4,469,396 5,705,966 - 10,175,362
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued
Society - previous year

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as foilows:

Incoming Resources Gains, losses  Movement n
resources expended and iransfers funds
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 294,858,256 (292,615,061) - 2,244 195
Pension liability - {3,066,000) 6,755,000 3,689,000
Share capital 6,250 (7,400 - {1,150)
204,865,506  (2895,688,461) 6,755,000 5,832,045
Restricted funds
Sccial bond - {21,500} - {21,500)
| amn Tower Hamlats 2,024 {37,726) - (35,702)
Lincolnshire Arts Council - {116,373) - {118,373)
Swindon Zurich 160,539 (187.494) - {26,955}
Dementia Friendly Swirming 4,171 (29,720) - (25,549)
166,734 {392,813) - {226,079}
TOTAL FUNDS 295,032,240 (296,081,274) 6,755,000 5,705,966

RESTRICTED FUND - SOCIAL BOND
Grant funding was provided ‘o help with the funding of the issue costs of the Social Bond. These costs are being recagnised
as resources expended at a constant rate on the carrying amaunt of the bend.

RESTRICTED FUND ~ FOR THE GIRLS, BY THE GIRLS
National Lottery funding was secured fo support the ‘for the Girls, by the Girls’ project which aims o encourage inactive girls
and women aged between 14 and 25 to take part in physical aclivity.

RESTRICTED FUND - ARTS COUNCIL
Funding has been received for a Roald Dahl exhibition at fibraries run in Lincoinshire.

RESTRICTED FUND - | AM TOWER HAMLETS

increased sport and physical activity participation of the following groups:
Inactive People

Women & Girls

Young People

Older People {50+ years}

People with disabilities
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

RESTRICTED FUND - SWINDON ZLRICH
Funding received from Zurich Community Trust to provide communily activities for the older generation who are often socially
isolated, the funding covers staffing costs for these events. The programime has just been extended fo July 2020.

RESTRICTED FUND - DEMENTIA FRIENDLY SWIMMING
Funding from Swim England to provids swimming sessions for dementia sufferers — funding covered staff costs and hire of
facfiities.

DESIGNATED FUND ~ COPELAND
Includes & fund set up to meet future possible pension liabilities in cannection with the Copeland Cantract and a separate fund
for maintenance responsibiiities that will accur over the life of the contract,

DESIGNATED FUND - SOUTHLAKES
includes a fund set up to meet future possible pension liabilities in connection with the Scuth Lakes Contract and a separate
fund for maintenance responsibilities that will occur over the fife of the contract.

DESIGNATED FUND - FINESSE

COMMUNITY FUND

£260,000 of the net Assats transferred by WHLL to GLL on the Completion Date is held by GLL as a designated fund to e
applied solsly for charitable community purposes to support local initiatives in Welwyn Hatfleld.

For a pericd of 11 years starling on and including the Completion Date, GLL shall transfer net less than £45,000 per annum
into the Community Fund,

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Group
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £
Fixgd assets 81,197,454 - 61,197,454
Current assels 66,383,330 180,787 67,164,127
Current liabilities (69,105,000} - (69,105,000}
Long term liabilities {20,184,345) (20,184,345)
Pension scheme liability {37,937,000) - (37,937,000}
Total net assels 954 439 180,797 1,135,236
Society
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £
Fixed assefs 61,197,453 - 61,197,453
Current assets 66,909,814 180,797 67,090,611
Current liabilities {69,031,485) - (69,031,485}
Long term liabilities (20,184,345} - (20,184,345)
Pension scheme fiability (36,646,000} - (36,646,000)
Total nat assets 2,245,437 180,797 2,426,234
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - previous year

Group

Fixed assets

Current assets

Current liabllities

Long term liabiiilies
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Society

Fixed assets

Current assets

Current liahiliies

Long term liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Page 65

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Unrestricted Resiricted Totai
Funds Funds Funds
As restated As restatad As restaied
£ £ £
62,734,682 - 62,734 682
60,292,638 188,700 60,481,338
(64,678,896) . (64,678,896)
(20,409,628) - {20,409,628)
{28,434,000) - {28,434,000)
9,504,796 188,700 9,693,496
Unrestricted Restricied Total
Funds Funds Funds
As restated As restated As restated
£ £ £
62,897,582 - 82,897,582
60,214,169 188,700 £0.402,869
{64,658,461) - (64,658,461)
(20,409,628} - (20,409,828)
{28,057,000) - (28,067,000)
9,986,662 188,700 10,175,362
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33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN FUNDS

Group

{Deficity'surpius for the financial year

Other recognised gains and losses refating to the year (net)
Shares issued duting the year

Shares cancelled during the year

Net addition to funds
Cpening funds

Closing funds

Sociaty

Surplus/(Deficit) for the financiai year

Other recognised gains and fosses relating to the year {net}
Shares issued during the year

Shares canceiled during the year

Net addition to funds
Opsning funds

Closing funds

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group

31,1218 31.12.18
£ £
Contracted for but not provided
for in the financial statements -

314218 311218
£ £
{2,690,360) {1,218,945)
(5,873,000) 7,809,000

11,080 6,250
(5,950) (7,400)
(8,558,280) 6,388,905
8,693,488 3,304,581
1,135,236 9,693,496
31.12.19 3t.12.18
£ £
(2,580,228) (1,047 884)
(5,174,000} 6,755,000
11,080 6,250
(5,950} (7,400}
(7,748,128) 5,705,966
10,175,362 4,469,396
2426,234 10,175,362
Society
31.12.19 31.12.18
£ £

Al 31 December 2019 there was capilal expenditure authorised by the committee of management but not confracted for of

£608,000 (2018: £2,376,545},

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Saciety is contrclled by its members, nene of whom have any controlling powers over the Society. The day to day runhing

of the Scciety rests with its Committee of Management.
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GREENWICH LEISURE LIMITED

34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - COMTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Ceriain commiitee members hold social bonds in the Society: Interest on these amounts is paid out annually on 31 October,
The following gross interest paymants were made during the year:

Mark Sesnan £750
Matf Perren £60
Alan Ritchie £60
Gareth Kirk £60

During the year Greenwich Leisure Limited made payments to Bill Brown, cne of the commitiee members, of £nil (2018:
£1,500} in relation to services pravided lo the Society.

During the year Greenwich Leisure Limited made payments on behaif of Gesling Leisure Limited of £nil (2018: £nil). Gosling
Leisure Limited chargec Greenwich Leisure Limited £nil {2018: £45,00C) relating to rent and Greenwich Leisure Limited
charged Gosling Leisure Limited £nil (2018; £50,000) afso relating to Renf. Gosling Leisure Limited ceased trading on 31
December 2018 and was subsequently formally dissolved on 31 December 2018,

During the year Greenwich Leisure Limited agreed to loan Openpiay Limited, a company in which Greenwich Lsisure Limited
purchased shares in the year, a total amount of £706,000. As at 31 December 2019, Openplay Limited had drawn down
£385,414 of this. This amount is included willin detiors at the year end.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 31 Oecember 2019 the Society acquired the assets of Gosling Leisure Limited.

Gosling Leisure Limited

Date of acquisition 31 December 2019
Type cf acquisition Assets
Maans of control Transier of assels
Cost of acquisition £3,556,137

Vaiue of acquisition £3,556,137

The transfer of assats all happened al fair value. £3,498,105 is included within fixed assets as additions during the year for
the Society. £58,032 was a loan between the Sociely and Gosling Leisure Limited which was netted off on consolidation.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The outbreak of COVID-19, which has taken place following the year ended 31 December 2019, has resulted in a pandemic
causing extensive disruption across the globe, The UK Government enforced a lockdown from 23 March 2020 and the
temporary closure of all ieisure establishments including gyms and leisure centres. The Group's activities, as with many
businesses, have been impacted. The respective Gaverniments of Nerthern Ireland, Wales and England have now permitted
leisure centres, gyms and indoor pools to reopen (Nosthem Ireland on 11 July 2020, Wales on 10 August 2020 and England
on 25 July 2020). The impact of the new social distancing measures has limited a facility's capacity and the continued
existence of COVID-19 in our society, has had an impact on the behaviour of the Group's cusiomers so the Group is aperating
at a far lower level than normal. The Group has secured and or is at an advanced stage in negofiations with its partners and
bankers to secure short term support and long term finance without which its abilily to sontinue for the foresesabie future
would also be uncertain. This is a non-adjusting post balance sheet event,
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